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A AN

Definitions

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires,
the following expressions shall have the following meanings.

“B2C”
[ B2C |
“CAGR”
[EAFERER]

“Company” or “the
Company”

ZAYNCIN

“Corporate Governance
Code”
[ ESFAl]

“Director(s)”

(&%

“ESG”
EC I 3

“F&N”
[ F&N |

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
[ 5%

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK
dollars” or “HK$”

(%l

“Listing”

[

*

EHES

RAFEHRA - FRXERBHEN
B NHIHE -

B i A

business to customers
SRS

compound annual growth rate, a method of assessing the average growth of a
value over time

EEFREEXR B EBHERETRRARX-—BEFHERNA

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (£ 4 BB 15 3% B IR A &) *), an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability on 13 June 2000 and,
except where the context otherwise requires, all of its subsidiaries, or where the
context refers to the time before it became the holding company thereof, our
Company’s present subsidiaries

BRBBFIZERABR AR - R2000F6A1IBHEBEREFMAN LN ERRER A A
R(BRXESEREMNEMEMNBARS(MXBEEXRIERA R AN BAME)
RRRIRENE A A

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
oM B AR A 8+ e kR E RS A

the director(s) of the Company

ARRE=R

environmental, social and governance
RE HEgRkER

Fraser and Neave, Limited
Fraser and Neave, Limited

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of Mainland China
REFEBFNITHER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BBEEEE

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Mty OB R FT E AR BT

For identification purposes only
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Definitions (continued)

Bx(E)

“Listing Date”
[ £ A

“Listing Rules”
[Em R Al

“Macau”
[CRPFT]

“Mainland China”
[ A 3 A 3

“Net Proceeds”
[FT1S 518 % 58 |

“NH Foods”
[ NH Foods |

“020”
[020 ]

“Oriole”

DRA ]

“Oriole International”

DR A = B B

11 May 2018, the date which the Company’s shares are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to
commence on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

2018F5 AR ARG N EBBMIA MU BEREBBIMABEEL
H &

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time
ERBMARIMBRARAESF EMARA BTKEFSHMER

the Macau Special Administrative Region of Mainland China
B P45 Bl 1T B =

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this Annual Report,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
MEARRANBE ftAFHEME  TEEEE  RFIKRGE

the net proceeds from issuance of the Shares in connection with the Listing
B £ BT IR D B PR S SRR FE FR

NH Foods Limited
NH Foods Limited

online to offline

mEHZT

Oriole Food Company Limited (2 %= & & A R A 7)), a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 13 November 2002, which is wholly-owned by Mr.
Chu Cho Wing, being the son of Mr. Chu Sun Chi, who is a shareholder and
director of Whole Sun, and is a connected person of the Company
BFSRMAERAT - R2002F11A13BEBTEFMA LN BER AR - AKREL
EE(EHFORRREEAFTELAEZT)2EREG UALRRAIAEAL

Oriole Food International Limited CEF SR MBI ER A F), a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong on 22 March 2017, which is owned as to
51% by Mr. Chu Cho Wing, being the son of Mr. Chu Sun Chi, who is a
shareholder and director of Whole Sun and as to 49% by Ms. Li Sze Mun
Charmaine, the daughter-in-law of Mr. Chu Sun Chi, and is a connected person of
the Company

BASRMEBRAERAF  R2017F3A2BEEEAMK LA AR DA - B
HEEEBVEFHRERESAFEEEZF)RETFHL LT (BIRFELEEZ
1897) 9 RIHEB51% Rk49% - W AR AR BEEA T

—F-N\FFH BRERERERQF 3
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Definitions (continued)

Bx(E)

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

[ B R AR % SRR R
L

“Prospectus”
[ =R

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
AR

“Share(s)”
A% 7 ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[ 8% izt 51 &1
“Share Option Schemes”
[ZEBEREE

“Shareholders”

AR

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 B |

“Whole Sun”

[ %]

the pre-IPO share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
December 2017, the principal terms of which are summarized in the paragraphs
headed “D. Share Option Schemes — 1. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus

RRABR2017F12A15B B R ERMAN B R ARBERIBRETE - EE 22BN
RBRERZWSE TN (D.ZEERETSE - 1.8 HAEEABERESEISEH
pIs

prospectus of the Company dated 30 April 2018
RNATF BB A2018F4A308 2 BIRERE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of Mainland China

ARE  FBEEE

ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with a par value of HK$0.10 each
AR BIRAF FREEC.10/E T HY & i AR

the share option scheme conditionally approved and adopted by the Company on
15 December 2017, the principal terms of which are summarized in the
paragraphs headed “D. Share Option Schemes — 2. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus

RRABR2017F12A158 B IR E RIEKANERET S HETZBRRARBRE
BHSEMID.2EBRES - 2. BRET S SR

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme
EPNGER LU R

holder(s) of Shares
RIPFE A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARIMARRAT

Whole Sun Limited (% %18 5B R A7), formerly known as Tsit Wing Frozen Food
Trading Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 7
January 2013 and an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company

S E S AR QA (BF8Tsit Wing Frozen Food Trading Limited) @ 201341 A7
BESBIMEZOABR QA TR E % B60%ME = &) A # Kt 8 2 7

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018



Definitions (continued)
BE(E)

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate”, “connected
person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling shareholder”,
“subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the
meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the

context otherwise requires.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this Annual
Report have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not
be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them.

The English translation of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations in Chinese or another language
included in this Annual Report is for identification purposes
only. To the extent there is any inconsistency between the
Chinese names of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations and their English translations,
the Chinese names shall prevail.

RARERA - BXEABAEN [BEAL
(EEAL] [BERS] - [EERRR] - T8
RAIRTEERRIFFAZG AR £ 5 B
THEARNRE -

AEFRENET2RERAILBEFERGL
MERARAE - Hih - ETRBAMTHE
AHFRLRELABFNEMAN -

REFABAPXEIEMBE XD RNTEE
B 00X BR REDEROEBFEMHR
HR WP EER X BR RELER
MAXARERENBEFETMEE  #iN
R B A% -

—F-N\FFH BRERERERQF 5
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Corporate Information

NGRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tat Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith

Ms. Fan Yee Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong

Mr. Wong Man Fai

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong
Mr. Wong Man Fai

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Mr. Wong Man Fai

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Wong Man Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith (HKICPA)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith
Ms. Fan Yee Man

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISOR
Benny Pang & Co
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BOSC International Company Limited
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Corporate Information (continued)

NEER(E)

PRINCIPAL BANKS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE IN BERMUDA
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Flats F—J, 11th Floor, Block 1

Kwai Tak Industrial Centre

15-33 Kwai Tak Street

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.twcoffee.com

STOCK CODE
2119

ERERRT
R (B BB A A
BERTHERAF

BREAMBSEE
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

BEERANEERIEEXRMR

B/A

R

AR

2% = 515-335%
EETEFD
FIEIIEF-JE

BEREEFETRE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
ERABLEERE
BEBLAEZLBERAT
&5
EFERKEFR1835E

& R

2212

A T # ut
www.twcoffee.com

B 12 1% 3R

2119

—EF-N\FFH BEREBRZERERAA
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Tsit Wing International Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries, | hereby present to you the
Company’s Annual Report for the financial year ended 31
December 2018.

In over 85 years, the Group has grown from an outlet providing
coffee roasting and trading of coffee and tea to a leading
integrated B2B coffee and black tea solutions provider in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China with an established food
products business. 11 May 2018 marks the beginning of a new
era as the shares of the Company were successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The successful listing
not only enhances the Group’s corporate image but also
enables it to undergo product, geographical and market
diversification by utilising the Net Proceeds.

Eyeing to become a “world-class integrated food and
beverages services provider”, the Group is constantly in search
of means to enhance its solutions offering capability and for
horizontal business expansion. The B2B coffee and tea
products market in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau has
expanded over the last few years and is expected to continue
to grow at a robust pace in the next few years. In order to
stay tune with the markets, the Group strives to leverage off its
stable and diversified customer base and well-established
multi-channel distribution network and endeavours to (i)
diversify its product portfolio which enables it to capture
changes in market trends and consumer preferences in the
markets the Group serves; and (i) work with new strategic
partners to increase its presence in Mainland China and
explore business opportunities in Southeast Asia.

While the Group is leading in the B2B coffee and black tea
solutions markets, it foresees the need to expand into the B2C
and 020 markets given their huge potential for growth. As part
of its initiatives to achieve market diversification, the Group is
currently exploring the possibility to make strategic investment
in Mainland China to tap into the O20 market. | believe this
move could be a catalyst for the Group’s long-term growth by
reaping the benefits of the economies of scale and thus
increase in the Groups’ profit margin.

8 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

BAIRIR

AABRRBELBEBRERER 2T REK B
ANalE B TE2®RARAHZE2018F12831H
IEBREERHFIR -

REBIZZES - B RPBEESSF - B H1IR
HMBEEE R RARXE ZNEE  BEREK
SRR AB2BYILE AT R B SRR B RIS 7B
B YEBITAERENRGBER - 2018F5H 11
B ARAERFAHERE  ROKIDREERTE
MEM - KR ETTEMBAEEN®EFR
& MBEUNAASREFRERNER i
R TIBEE -

AEENBERERAMEARARGEESERRBEH
Rl XS HIETIREE KRB RIS
NRKFEBEFENTTE - BB ~ T B KR
HB2BUIBE M REmMmM S HEABEHFRE B
HIARRBFREBEUNRESKER - BT ERY
MG AEENRKMBERERZTIEEFE
ERTENSRERXBL  THOIEEEM
HEamMEALEAREMRRE TSN SB
BRBEEESHEL RMEFRBEBHS
B AR EMRE NN R EREDE -

AREEEEB2BMUE RALAREIRF TS
KM EFEEEEFEB2CKO20TS - AR H
BEEERERE - AEERBEHBAERD
BEZt B —REAAEERF RS KR
BRI E B - AERO20T 5 - R AR @ #
HERRREENS  thREREAEENK
BEER - EMESAKENFEX-



Chairman’s Statement (continued)

TR®E(E)

In 2019, the global economy may be clouded by uncertainties
prevailing in the external environment and in particular, the US-
China trade has weighed on the global economic sentiment
and activities. The Group has taken certain risk management
measures to maintain a sustainable growth. The Group has
been effectively managing raw material price by staying abreast
of the latest raw material price movements, frequently
communicating with the suppliers of the Group and, only if
necessary, engaging in hedging activities limited to actual
consumption. Fluctuations in the exchange rates of Renminbi,
which are affected by factors including changes in Mainland
China’s political and economic conditions, also pose risks to
the profitability of the Group. The management is closely
monitoring the Group’s transactional currency exposures arising
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currency and will consider to
implement hedging measures if deemed appropriate.

In 2018, the Group’s revenue was HK$1,071.2 million, profit
attributable to owners of the parent was HK$75.8 million and
basic earnings per share was HK10.71 cents. The Board will
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.78 cents
per share with the dividend payout ratio of 58.1%. Total
amount of final dividend for the year 2018 will be HK$44.1
million.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere
gratitude to our staff, clients, distributors, suppliers, business
partners and Shareholders for their unwavering support.

Wong Tat Tong
Chairman

2019¢ HNERENTITRBREERESE2HE
B AXBEILESERKERANEX Y
:é AEBEDRECE TRBREERELAER]
BELER ASEZEHEVMHAEREZE L -
HASBENHERTHEAR (EREFER)
LHEBRRER BB TGS  BUBRE
BEMEHER - F B A BUA & A i
tEEEFE AREEXRHTEHAEE
R AT e NERER - SR EENITIELAE
UHEEBETHNEE EREERVERAN
El?ﬁéﬂh%iﬁ’]* BEEER  WEEREE
i ) R TR BE o

2018%F » AEBMRKAE1,071.2BEB T
RAEE ANEEEF A75.8B BB T REBRER
BAE10.718L - ETSREZINRARKE
FA5.7871l - IRB R A58.1% ° 2018F EHX
HiR BB B4 BEBEBT -

AANBRREZSEYET TP o#HE #
JER - IR M IR R B S 15 BRA B 2

=
=N
N

—F-\FFH BRERERERD 9



A AN

Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEER W N D

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading integrated B2B coffee and black tea
solutions provider in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China
providing one-stop coffee and tea solutions to commercial
customers that cover the entire coffee and tea procurement,
processing and distribution value chain, with an expertise on
Hong Kong-style milk tea. Other than the B2B coffee and black
tea solution business the Group has traditionally focuses on,
seeing a potential growth in the food market, it has expanded
its business scope and commenced its frozen meat business in
Hong Kong and Mainland China in 2013 and frozen processed
food in Hong Kong in 2015 and Mainland China in 2016.

REVENUE

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue categorized by
business segments for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017:

¥ %% E B

AEBRES BRMERTPFBEAMELENGE
BoBUNME RAI R ERKREIRISHLIER - A%
BERE—AAMBERARERKE RS - &
EERMBERARERE NIk HEEMBEE -
BEAEEBAPENBEENHZ -BRTAEEBE
EREEHB2BM Y R ALK ERK BRI
B BARERMBNEREN AEEEIE
AREBKEHE - R2013FER S K+ HAH %G
SORABER - WHR2015FEE B K R20164F
EREANARSRERERMER -

PN
TREHE E2018F K2017F12A31H IEFE
BREBDHE DB AEBR WA

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31B L& E
2018 2017
20185 20174
(HK$’000) % of total (HK$’000) % of total

(FERx) HREEIL

(TET) HRBANL

Beverage Solutions ZREKEIRT 808,734 75.5% 711,349 74.5%
Food Products B 262,498 24.5% 243,261 25.5%
Total et 1,071,232 100.0% 954,610 100.0%

10 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWNE DN (E)

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue categorized by — N&REFIE Z20184F K2017F12 A31H IEFE
geographical location for the years ended 31 December 2018 &It ¥B A1 & £ 5 H) AN & B YL A
and 2017:

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31B L& E
2018 2017
20185 20174
(HK$’000) % of total (HK$’000) % of total

(FERx) HREEIL (THET) HRBANKL

Hong Kong BB 739,191 69.0% 697,353 73.0%
Mainland China R K B 313,985 29.3% 238,905 25.1%
Macau S8 Y 11,896 1.1% 11,153 1.2%
Others H A 6,160 0.6% 7,199 0.7%
Total 4=t 1,071,232 100.0% 954,610 100.0%

Note: Others include revenue derived from sales in Australia, Canada, Fi&E : b BFERERIM - MEKX  FRAE - 3

Malaysia, Philippines and Taiwan. EERAEHENRA -
GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT EMNREANE
MARGIN

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit of each of N &I # E20185F k2017412318 ILFE
the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31 AEEXFEBOMHAREEERN :
December 2018 and 2017:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
(HK$°000) % of total (HK$’000) % of total

(FEx) HREEIL (THIT) HEEFDL

Beverage Solutions BERERE R 308,135 92.5% 264,334 91.3%
Food Products B M 24,993 7.5% 25,280 8.7%
Total et 333,128 100.0% 289,614 100.0%

—FN\FFEH REBBREBAERAT ik
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWE D (E)

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit margin of
each of the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017:

TREFIIEE2018F K20174F12A31B LFE
AREZRBOBOAREEF X

Year ended 31 December

B ZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Beverage Solutions BERREKE R 38.1% 37.2%
Food Products B 9.5% 10.4%
Total ot 31.1% 30.3%

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a
total revenue of HK$1,071.2 million, representing an increase of
116.6 million, or 12.2%, compared to the year ended 31
December 2017. The revenue was primarily
attributable to the revenue derived from the
beverage solutions business, and to a lesser extent, the growth
in revenue derived from the food products business. Gross
profit increased by HK$43.5 million, or 15.0%, from HK$289.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$333.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. Gross profit
margin increased from 30.3% for the year ended 31 December
2017 to 31.1% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

increase in
increase in

12 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

B E2018F12H31H IEFE - AKEHFRI
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWNE DN (E)

Beverage solutions

The Group provides a one-stop service for its commercial
customers that covers marketing analysis, recipe development,
sourcing, production, marketing and after sales services which
include regular customer training and equipment maintenance.
Such services are provided through the Group’s five
operational modules, which include () menu management and
recipe development, (i) strong global sourcing network, (iii)
automated product execution, (iv) sophisticated distribution
system for diverse customers, and (v) comprehensive customer
services.

Revenue from the beverage solutions segment increased by
HK$97.4 million, or 13.7%, from HK$711.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK$808.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The revenue growth in beverage
solutions segment was primarily because of the increase in
revenue derived from tea and instant beverage mix products in
Mainland China. Gross profit increased by HK$43.8 million, or
16.6%, from HK$264.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$308.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, mainly in line with the increment in revenue.
Gross profit margin of the beverage solutions business
increased from 37.2% for the year ended 31 December 2017
to 38.1% for the year ended 31 December 2018, primarily
because of the relatively higher gross profit margin generated
from tea and instant beverage mix products.

The joint marketing campaigns ran by the Group and its
customers operating food chain outlets during the year were
proved to be successful and contributed to the increase in
revenue. The promoted products which targeted food chain
outlets were well received and achieved remarkable results. The
Group shall continue to undertake similar promotional initiatives
to further expand its market share.

ERKRERH
AEERBETFRHERET SN - HKHA
T ORKB LE THERRERRF(HE
BEMBEEI R EEE) N — R -
ZERBEBAEE R ELERRREMHR B
()& 8RB I8 I A SR B B ¢ (i) 58 KB 2 BRER BB 49
i (IEBEMEMNIT (VRZTEERM
BROBEHBEZXRS  RVEENE PR -

BERKRERBE D EHRABREZE2017F12H31
HIEFEM711.38 8B mo7.48 BB sk
13.7% %= & £2018F 12 A31H It F & #1808.7
BEBT ERKREIARBHTHRALER =
ZHRRRRARE RS A UL A 15
MATE - EXNHEE20175F12831B IEEER
264.38 &8 TIE N43.8E &8 T 516.6% = &
£2018F12H31H IE FE #I308. 18 & & T -
ABEREKAERRFN - BRKREIRB XA
EFERBEHZE2017F12A8318 I FEHI7.2%
EAEEZE2018F12A31H L F EH38.1% -
FTEERRRBRAREHAHEENEN XA

W -

AEERERERMEHENTPNFARAE
WS LHIDRY THRAER - BER
RmEHENEERERBIHT  KREE -
AEBEKESERBLUEREE  AE—FE
FAEMHMEE -

—FN\FFEH REBBREBAERAT 13
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWR DM (E)

Food products

The Group provides frozen meat and frozen processed food of
renewed brands and its own frozen processed food brand
“Papa Chef” under OEM arrangement.

Revenue from the food products segment increased by
HK$19.2 million, or 7.9%, from HK$243.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK$262.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The revenue growth in food
products segment was primarily because of the increase in (i)
the sales of frozen meat products as a result of pricing
strategy of the Group; and (i) the sales of frozen processed
food products as a result of the expansion of such business in
Hong Kong. Gross profit decreased by HK$0.3 million or 1.1%
from HK$25.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
HK$25.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
gross profit margin decreased from 10.4% for the year ended
31 December 2017 to 9.5% for the year ended 31 December
2018, primarily due to the increase in procurement cost of
frozen meat products.

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS
Hong Kong

Since the Group’s establishment in Hong Kong in the early
1930s, it has gradually built an established sales and
distribution network in Hong Kong throughout the vyears.
Revenue generated in Hong Kong increased by HK$41.8
million, or 6.0%, from HK$697.4 million in the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$739.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The growth in revenue generated in Hong Kong was primarily
because of increase in sales of coffee, tea and milk product as
a result of growth in customers’ demand.

Mainland China

The Group entered into Mainland China market since 1994 by
introducing its coffee products. Revenue generated in Mainland
China increased by HK$75.1 million, or 31.4%, from HK$238.9
million in the year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$314.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase in
revenue derived from instant beverage mix products in
Mainland China was the driving force for the increase in
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018.

14 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

BRRIEERHBE N EHRSGH @ER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWR DM (E)

Macau

Macau is another important market to the Group’s business
and the Group entered into the Macau market in 2012,
Revenue generated in Macau increased by HK$0.7 million, or
6.7%, from HK$11.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to HK$11.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The growth in revenue generated in Macau was primarily
because of increase in sales to a new customer.

Others

In addition, the Group also sells a small portion of its products
to Taiwan and other overseas countries including Australia,
Canada, Malaysia and Philippines through distributors. Revenue
generated in others decreased by HK$1.0 million, or 14.4%,
from HK$7.2 million in the year ended 31 December 2017 to
HK$6.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The decrease in revenue was primarily because of decrease in
sales in Philippines.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

In order to strengthen the Group’s position as a leading
integrated B2B coffee and black tea solutions provider in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China, the Group will endeavour to
take more marketing initiatives to capture the growth in the
B2B coffee and tea products market in Hong Kong and
Mainland China which are expected to rise at a CAGR of 4.2%
and 11.0%, respectively (according to the industry report
prepared by Frost & Sullivan Limited).

In line with the Group’s business strategies, it will further
strengthen its ability to provide food and beverage products
solutions to its customers by exploring potential businesses of
other strategic arrangements with entities which have the
product portfolios demanded by customers and distribution
network to expand the Group’s distribution network.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWE D (E)

The Group has taken business initiatives to strengthen its
frozen meat and frozen processed food products business and
expand its product offerings by entering into a strategic
cooperation agreement with NH Foods for the sale of frozen,
fresh, precooked processed meat and seafood products and a
memorandum of understanding with F&N to explore business
and product development opportunities for the supply,
distribution, co-branded promotion and co-development of
beverage products and/or beverage solutions in July 2017 and
April 2018, respectively.

Leveraging on the Group’s experience in providing frozen meat
and frozen processed food, the Group aims to provide tailor-
made frozen meat and processed food products to satisfy the
needs of its well-established and diverse customer base in
Hong Kong,
product portfolio. Furthermore, the Group will continue to take
on more strategic alliance initiatives and explore business
development opportunities with various business partners for
the supply, distribution, co-branded promotion and co-
development of beverage products and/or beverage solutions.
The Board believes that building on the Group’s leading market
position and well-established distribution network could fully
utilize the distribution channels and optimize efficiency. In the
forthcoming vyear, the Group seeks deepen
penetration, particularly focusing on the Mainland China market
which is expected to experience considerable growth, to
maintain a high growth rate.

Macau and Mainland China and enhance its

its market
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWR DM (E)

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

Three subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong,
namely Global Tea Trading Company Limited, Tsit Wing (China)
Caterer Limited and Tsit Wing Frozen Food Company Limited,
were deregistered by the Registrar of Companies of Hong Kong
pursuant to section 751 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) and the relevant details are as follows:

ITHBRE
ARRREAEIMKR IO =K B LAGF - B
Global Tea Trading Company Limited - # 48
(FEDZERBRAA ERLREMARAA
ERIEFE622E (R TR B751EET B R A
AMEERABEEM  BEFBET

Nature of business prior to

Name of the company dissolution

DNE BB

BRENEEMHEE

Date of dissolution

FR AR

Global Tea Trading Company Limited

No business operation (Note)

15 June 2018

Global Tea Trading Company Limited I M TS E (M 5F) 20186 H15H
Tsit Wing (China) Caterer Limited No business operation (Note) 15 June 2018
BR(PBEERARRD W R 7528 (M &) 20186 A 15H
Tsit Wing Frozen Food Company Limited No business operation (Note) 22 February 2019
RERLREmMBRRAA 7 M 3 s 2 E (T 5E) 201952 H22H

Note: Under section 750 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), an
application for deregistration can only be made if (a) all members
of such company agree to such deregistration; (b) such

company has never commenced business or operation, or has

ceased to carry on business or ceased operation for more than
three months immediately before the application; and (c) such

company has no outstanding liabilities.

As the Group wishes to streamline its corporate structure in
Mainland China, two applications to deregister subsidiaries of
the Company established in Mainland China, namely Cadiz
(Shenzhen) Caterer Company Limited* (3238 CEJI) B8R ER D
A]) (“CDCL") and Dongguan TWG Heritage Food Company
Limited* (REREERMAMR A A (‘DG TWG Heritage”) were
filed on 10 August 2019 and 19 November 2018, respectively.
CDCL and DG TWG Heritage received approval letters for their
deregistration applications from the Market Supervision
Administrations of Shenzhen City on 25 January 2019 and the
Dongguan Industry and Commerce Administration Bureau on 30
January 2019, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWE D (E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by HK$116.6 million, or 12.2%,
from HK$954.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to HK$1,071.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in revenue
derived from the beverage solutions business, and to a lesser
extent, the growth in revenue derived from the food products
business.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by HK$73.1 million, or
11.0%, from HK$665.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$738.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The
primarily a result of (i) the increase in raw material costs for the
beverage solutions products, which was in line with the growth
in the overall sales volume; and (i) the increase in procurement
prices for frozen meat products.

increase in the cost of sales was

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by HK$43.5 million, or
15.0%, from HK$289.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$333.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Group’s gross profit margin increased
from 30.3% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 31.1%
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Other income and gains, net

The Group’s other income and gains, net, decreased by
HK$1.0 million from HK$4.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$3.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The decrease was primarily a result of (i)
decrease in gains on disposal of property, plant and
equipment; and (ii) foreign exchange losses due to
strengthening of the United States dollar during the year ended
31 December 2018.

18 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Bt % B B8

WA
REBHWA BB E2017F12A31B ILEER
954.6E BB LI IN116.68 BB TH12.2%E
# £2018F12A31H It F E M1,071.28 &8
Lo WAMEZEARERKREIRBEBH
WA EARRMBEBEEAKAE
e

Eio =S
AEBREEXABEE2017F12A318 1L F
[E H665.08 &8 T 7318 BB Lsk11.0%
Z2H E2018F12A31H IF FEM738.1H & /&
T o $HER AN NN E B2 () B 8RR B RS
EmBRMERAE N - Mg EmREiESIg
E—80 Ri)BRABEMHORBER AN
@(o

EFNRERN=E
AREBNENHEZ2017F12831H L FEH
289.6F BB T IN43.5E B8 TH15.0%EH,
£2018F12H31H L FE /B3 1BEE AT °
AEBAENKRBEZ2017F12A318 IEFE
#930.3% F FF EH E2018F12A31B L EE W
31.1% °

HttW AR K= FE
AEBOHEMBARKSFEBEZ2017F
128318 It EEW4.0B8EE THA1.08 85
TTE A £2018F12A31H It F EH3.08 &5
TeoRMPFERHRONEEDE BE K&K E
W R - R (i)E 22018512 A31H L FE =
T E B BHMNE B BT -



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWNE DN (E)

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
HK$8.0 million, or 7.1%, from HK$112.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK$120.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, primarily due to increase in (i)
marketing and promotion expenses; (i) storage expenses; and
(iii) logistics expenses, which were generally in line with the
increment in revenue.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by HK$9.6
million, or 8.7%, from HK$109.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$100.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The decrease was primarily a result of
decrease in consultancy and professional fee, which was
incurred in relation to the Listing, which partially offset with (i)
increase in staff costs, which was mainly a result of an
increase in the average salary of the Group’s employees; and
(i) recognition of share-based payment expense relating to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
HK$6.8 million (year ended 31 December 2017: HK$25.0
million) in consultancy and professional fee in relation to the
Listing.

Other expenses, net

The Group’s other expenses, net, increased significantly by
HK$8.7 million from HK$3.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$12.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase was mainly due to the (i)
impairment of trade receivables; (ii) write-off of inventories in
relation to phasing out of packaging materials; and (i) foreign
exchange differences, net.

Finance cost

The Group’s finance cost increased by HK$1.9 million, or
45.5%, from HK$4.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to HK$6.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The increase was primarily a result of the increase in average
interest rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWE D (E)

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense increased by HK$4.4 million,
or 27.9%, from HK$15.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to HK$20.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, mainly due to the increase in profit before tax.
The Group’s effective income tax rate decreased from 24.6%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 20.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Profit for the year and net profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit increased by
HK$29.1 million, or 60.2%, from HK$48.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK$77.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Group’s net profit margin
increased from 5.1% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
7.2% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Adjusted profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent

The following table sets out the reconciliation from the Group’s
profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent to
adjusted profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent (Note):

FREHMEX
AEBEWSHRAZAEZE2017F12A31H 1E
FEMWI5.8B BB TE N4 48 BB Tk27.9%
ZE # 20185128318 It F E WM202H B 8
T EERARBRBMATRNEM  XREENE
BRFT 1S5 R A £2017F12A31H L EE &Y
24.6%8 > & & £2018F12A31H Ik F E &
20.7% °

FRmARAR=R

R EXFrat - ANEE A& M BB E20175F12
HB1B IEFE /4848 8B T N20.18 &8
JC 8K60.2% & & £2018F12831H IF F E K
TTS5EBAT AEENMANEREE2017F
128318 It FE /5.1% £ A+ & & £2018F 12
AB1H IEFEHT7.2% °

BRARAERABLFARAEHRZER
TRISEBRREBEAREAEESF "G F

BRI R AR AL F A AR R F W 2 8
BE :

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12AMBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)
(F# ) (F&mT)
Profit for the year attributable to owners & 2 &l#E A A E1HFE A
of the parent ikl 75,784 46,095
Plus/(minus): o CR)
Listing-related expenses FHHEBERX 6,791 24,974
Share-based payment expense relating — H2 & X QG2 E i ERR#EETE
to the Pre-IPO Share Option 1ERE 2 AR D B
Scheme AW RAX 7,405 —
Consultancy fee for land use rights R Tt AR RAR
and development plan in Dongguan FrEMERE - 6,007
Interest income earned from the ERs3 32 ¥NGIE 318
ultimate holding company F B R A - (419)
Adjusted profit for the year attributable NAEBAEBEER
to owners of the parent 4 38 B i F| 89,980 76,657

20 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

7/,



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWNE DN (E)

The Group’s adjusted profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2018 would amount to
HK$90.0 million, representing an increase of HK$13.3 million or
17.4%, as compared to HK$76.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Note: Adjusted profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent
is a non-HKFRS financial measurement which, in the opinion of
the Directors, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring
income, costs and charges and certain of other non-cash
charges that affect the reported profit attributable to owners of
the parent, including (i) Listing-related expenses; (i) share-based
payment expense relating to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;
(i) consultancy fee incurred for change in the nature of land
use rights and formation of development plan of a piece of land
in Dongguan; and (iv) interest income earned from the ultimate
holding company, and excluding any tax effects related to the
preceding judgements.

Capital Expenditure and Commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
additions of property, plant and equipment of HK$21.8 million
(year ended 31 December 2017: HK$16.8 million). A substantial
portion of the Group’s capital expenditures were incurred in
relation to the purchase of coffee machines which were leased
to the Group’s customers.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitment
of HK$0.6 million (31 December 2017: HK$0.7 million), mainly
comprising the related contracts of capital expenditure in
production machineries.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total interest-bearing
bank borrowings of HK$156.2 milion (31 December 2017:
HK$191.6 million).

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$435.2 million, representing an increase by HK$293.2 million
as compared with net current assets of HK$142.0 million as at
31 December 2017. The increase in net current assets was
mainly attributable to (i) the Net Proceeds received from the
Listing, and (i) internally generated cash flows from operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWE D (E)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$328.7 million
as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: HK$45.6
million). The Board is of the opinion that the financial position
of the Group is robust and the Group has sufficient resources
to support its operations and meet its foreseeable capital
expenditures.

Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2018, the capital structure of the Group
comprised share capital and reserves.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the vyear
ended 31 December 2018.

Contingent Liabilities
Saved as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements
below, there were no other contingent liabilities.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, on the basis of total interest-bearing
bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent, the Group’s gearing ratio was 29.1% (31 December
2017: 89.4%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to
(i) settlement of interest-bearing bank borrowings; and (i)
increase in equity attributable to owners of the parent from
Listing.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the unit’s functional currencies.
The majority of the Group’s foreign currency purchase
transactions are denominated in the United States dollars. On
the other hand, the sales and disbursements are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
management is closely monitoring foreign exchange exposure
of the Group. The Group will consider to adopt a foreign
currency hedging policy for significant foreign currency
exposures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWNE DN (E)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rate. The Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

Credit Risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables arises
from default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. In
the management of liquidity risk, the Group has been
maintaining a cash pooling system where excess liquidity is
equalised internally through inter-group accounts. Depending
on the specific
funding for the Group’s operating companies may be sourced
directly from the Group’s bankers or indirectly through the
Company.

requirements of each funding agreement,

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s buildings with
a net carrying amount of HK$3.9 milion were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group and the
ultimate holding company. Such pledges were fully released
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING
The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date. After the full exercise of the
Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus) and after
deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses,
the Net Proceeds amounted to HK$232.6 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEEENWE D (E)

RAFEREH ARG ERBARERAMLE
TUE A PTSRAM G SR A E R EMEL -

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company does not
anticipate any change to its plan on the use of proceeds as
stated in the Prospectus.

EEeh I TEE2REREEMBREN
BRIEME  BYERMEFAENERBR -
THERENNBRERBENMESRARE
P& I O -

The Board closely monitored the use of proceeds from the
Listing with reference to the use of proceeds disclosed in the
Prospectus and confirmed that there was no change in the
proposed use of proceeds as previously disclosed in the
Prospectus.

B T HEZE2018F12 A31H HAf - A5 I8
FEEE T A EA

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018,
the Net Proceeds had been applied as follows:

Unutilised
amount as at

Actual use of

Intended use of the Net proceeds up to

Proceeds as stated in the

Planned use of

31 December

31 December

Prospectus proceeds (Note) 2018 2018
B £2018%F 120184
o048 IR A2 B A B S ROE Fr8R B8 12B31BFE 12831H
FENRERR Ag®s  REERAR AXEBAEE
(HK$’000) (HK$’000) (HK$°000)
(F#&x) (F#&7xT) (F#&x)
Strengthen business portfolio mgEBAES 93,044 — 93,044
Capital investments of machineries # 23 & =& &5 #) & /&
and equipment "E 46,522 (17,618) 28,904
Expansion into Southeast Asia BREHEmMan 23,261 — 23,261
Product customisation and = oo B dilMb & R
development 23,261 (614) 22,647
Support sales and marketing STREENREH 23,261 (2,265) 20,996
General working capital —REEES 23,261 (12,467) 10,794
232,610 (32,964) 199,646

MERBEFEFEERSBRCRBERER
Frat BRI PIRBRAD AT AFE - RE
A AR P 15 5R0RF 2R L B BR UCER /O T 15 3008
FRECHAMER -

Note: The planned amount of use of Net Proceeds has been adjusted  Bff & :
in the same proportion and same manner as stated in the
Prospectus due to the difference between the estimated net
proceeds and the actual net proceeds received.

The unutilised Net Proceeds have been placed as bank
balances/time deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong as at
the date of this Annual Report.

RAFEHREB  RPAMEFTIRFREFAST
BRI IRITAERITER EHFRK -

77,
Z
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Directors and Senior Management

ESkeREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wong Tat Tong (E#Z E), aged 65, has been a Director since
6 July 2000 and was redesignated as an executive Director on
4 September 2017. He is the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for managing and formulating overall strategic
planning and development of the Group. Mr. Wong has joined
the Group for over 40 years since May 1978. Mr. Wong is a
director of several major operating subsidiaries of the Group
and also a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Being responsible for the day-to-day
management and overall strategic planning and development of
the Group, Mr. Wong has been playing an important role in the
Group’s development and growth over the past 40 years.

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist College (presently known as the Hong Kong
Baptist University). He is the Permanent Honorary President of
the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the Permanent
Honorary President of The Hong Kong and Kowloon Provisions,
Wine & Spirit Dealers’ Association Limited, a member and a
director of the committee of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and the
Company, Limited’s membership in The Hong Kong Chinese
Importers’ and Exporters’ Association.

representative of Tsit Wing Coffee

Wu Kam On Keith (5888 %), aged 44, has been a Director
since 22 January 2010 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 4 September 2017. He is the group chief operation
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined
the Group in 2005 and is primarily responsible for assisting in
strategic planning and business and corporate development of
the Group and overseeing sales operations of the Group. Mr.
Wu is a director of several major operating subsidiaries of the
Group. He is also the company secretary of all of the Group’s
subsidiaries which are incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu has
20 years of experience in finance and accounting
management.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENSAREEE(E)

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor of arts (honours) in accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong and a degree of master
of corporate governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is an authorized supervisor of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow and a certified
tax advisor of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director of
Fulum Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1443), a restaurant
chain serving Chinese cuisine, Hao Bai International (Cayman)
Limited (stock code: 8431), a Hong Kong-based contractor
specialized in design, procurement and installation services of
the water circulation systems and Sanbase Corporation Limited
(stock code: 8501), an interior fit-out solutions provider
focusing on providing services to clients whose offices are
predominately situated in Grade A offices in Hong Kong.

Fan Yee Man (###®), aged 38, was appointed as an
executive Director on 4 September 2017. Ms. Fan is the group
chief financial officer of the Company. She joined the Group in
2012 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall
financial position and accounting matters of the Group. Ms. Fan
is a director of several major operating subsidiaries of the
Group.

Ms. Fan has 15 years of experience in finance and accounting
management. Ms. Fan obtained a bachelor of business
administration (honours) in accountancy from the City University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Fan is a member and a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified
Public Accountant certified by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Tang Kwai Chang (& %), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENSREEE(E)

Mr. Tang has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and audit risk management. Mr. Tang obtained a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist College
(oresently known as Hong Kong Baptist University). He is a
fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Court of Hong Kong Baptist
University and a member of the disciplinary panel of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tang was
conferred with the Honorary University Fellowship by the Hong

Kong Baptist University in September 2017.

Mr. Tang is currently an independent non-executive director of
HKR International Limited (stock code: 480), a company
engaging in property development and investment and FIT Hon
Teng Limited (stock code: 6088), a company engaging in the
development and production of interconnect solutions and
related products.

Chow Alexander Yue Nong (/&# &), aged 68, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 15 December
2017. He is the chairman of the nomination committee and a
member of the audit committee. Mr. Chow has over 30 years
of experience in the financial and corporate industry. Mr. Chow
obtained a bachelor of arts degree in computer science and a
degree of master of business administration from the University
of California, Berkeley, in the United States. Further, he is a
committee member of The Chinese General Chamber of

Commerce.

Mr. Chow is an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock code: 755), a
company engaging in property development business, property
investments,
operations through its subsidiaries.

management and agency services and hotel

Wong Man Fai (£ X#), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee. Mr. Wong
has over 30 years of experience in the insurance industry. Mr.
Wong obtained his bachelor of science and master of business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENSAREEE(E)

Mr. Wong was appointed as a director of Starr International
Insurance (Asia) Limited, a private company engaging in
insurance business, in October 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Leung Kim Ming (&l 8), aged 52, is the general manager
— Mainland China. He joined the Group in 2008 and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations
in Mainland China, including supply chain, general affairs, B2B
sales, B2C sales, human resources and administration
departments. Mr. Leung has over 19 years of experience in
finance and accounting management. Mr. Leung obtained a
graduation diploma in business administration from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (presently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) and a bachelor of arts in accountancy from the
University of Bolton (in the United Kingdom).

Kam Chun Pong Bernard (£ &), aged 62, is the group
operating officer — marketing and group operating officer —
sales B2C. He has been working for the Group for six years
and is primarily responsible for coordinating and overseeing
marketing affairs of the Group and B2C sales related affairs.
Mr. Kam has more than 20 years of experience in marketing,
sales management and business development with a focus in
the fast moving consumer products industry. Mr. Kam obtained
a higher diploma in business studies from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (presently known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and a diploma in marketing from the Institute of
Marketing (in the United Kingdom). He also completed a ten-
international general management program, namely
Program for Executive Development at the International Institute
for Management Development in Switzerland.

week

Law Wan Yee Sandy (##E&) aged 43, is the group
operating officer —compliance. She joined the Group in 2003
and is primarily responsible for overseeing corporate
governance, legal compliance, risk management and internal
control matters. Ms. Law has 20 years of audit experience,
specializing in food, beverages and manufacturing industry. Ms.
Law obtained a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and certified to be a
Certified Public Accountant by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENSREEE(E)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wu Kam On Keith (5888 %), aged 44, is the company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for facilitating the
procedures/activities of the Board and the Board Committees
as well as good communication flow amongst the Board
members, shareholders and senior management of the
Company.

DREME

BBE - 4458 ARRIWARIME - HAAW
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present this
Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
firmly committed to a high level of corporate governance and
adherence to the governance principles and practices
emphasising transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. These principles and practices are
reviewed and revised regularly as appropriate to reflect the ever
changing regulatory requirements and corporate governance
development. The Board believes that the high standards of
corporate governance is the essential core for sustaining the
Group’s long term performance and value creation for our
shareholders, the investing public and the other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2018, complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for code provision A.2.1 which states that the
roles of chairman and chief executives should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Related
details are set out in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management power of the
Company to the executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. However, full delegation is not allowed for some
specific matters under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory
requirements, and the final decisions on those specific matters
are required to be taken by the whole board.

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to
creating value for our shareholders. The Board is responsible
for developing the strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning is one of the
Board’s important functions for aligning mission and vision and
a lot of focus and attention have been devoted to such a plan.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME(EFE)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition

Currently, our Board comprises six directors, including three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive

EEg (A
ESEREMAR

BRI EFEm A ABEFAX  BR=ZBHT
EEN=—2BYFNTES EFSNRKBX

Directors. The current composition of our Board is as follows: BT :
Membership of board

Name of Director committee(s) EEgA EEgZEEHE

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of nomination committee HEEEAE FMEZEEKE
(Chairman & Chief Member of remuneration (FERITHAEZ) T%% ZEEXE
Executive Officer) committee

Mr. WU Kam On Keith KB #k 22 5 A

Ms. FAN Yee Man ok QN |

Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHHITESE -

Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Chairman of audit committee HEZEAE BERLZEQERE

Member of remuneration FMEZEEKE

committee

Mr. CHOW Alexander Member of audit committee BB kA& BEZEZEG®NXE
Yue Nong Chairman of nomination committee REEZECER
Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of audit committee EXEEAE BERLZBEENKE
Chairman of remuneration FMEERERE
committee REEZEEEKE
Member of nomination committee
The designation, position and brief biographical information of &% EFTE 2 BT « Bz MK 75 LA & 1% b i =%

HARASEEREAE  TERRIZERER
LBERBINAFREERSEEBEAR]—
ot FIEETHEEBSE 2 ACKEE
ZHARETFIERB XA kARG L

www.twcoffee.com °

each Director, together with the relationship amongst each
other, senior management of the Company or Substantial or
Controlling Shareholder are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this Annual Report. In addition, a list
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company at www.twcoffee.com.

BYFATEFEESTEXREAB D Z2—
BREMRBAREN=Z02— -

The independent non-executive Directors represent half of the
Board which exceeds the Listing Rules requirement for one-
third.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board composition (Continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective delivery of the Board functions.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018,
the Company arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
in respect of any legal action against the Directors. The
insurance coverage shall be reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in May 2018. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website.

32 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

EEg(F

EEEREAR(H)
AAREKEEBIERTESRE LA
AIE3.13 GRES B2 BRI 2 BER
RE - ADARASBIFNTESHABY
At e

E=(BRBYFATER)OBEAREZME
BZeEin ABNREXTH BREFER
B MR 2R BT EBaE -

R ETHEEEZE2018F12A31H IEHAR - A A
A ERMSGHEENEZZTHLHERES SR
MNETRR EEREBNARBEEAEFR
& o

EEEREZ L
EEZEN2018F5ARMESZT SR EZ TILE
R EPHIEZTEXNEZTINE N KE
HETENEERZ -EFTEXNEZTIEER
ETIERARF M -



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKRE (E)

BOARD DIVERSITY (Continued)

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board by maintaining the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognising and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. Board appointments will continue to
be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. As at 31 December 2018, the following is a chart
showing the diversity profile of the Board:

[
EEeZ iR
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l Female
5 Independent cSies
non-executive

Director Over 66
665754
4 FHTES
HongiKong
i

Below/50
50BRA T

Gender Age Education

group
FEpAa Rl

Designation
BAE (331

HEER

o Board Diversity Profile

Professional
background experience professional
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Wong Tat Tong (“Mr. Wong”) is currently the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer,
responsible for formulating the overall business development
strategy and planning of the Group. In view that Mr. Wong has
been responsible for the overall management of the Group
since 1978, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of
the Group to have Mr. Wong taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority, accountability and
independent decision-making under the present arrangement
will not be impaired because of the diverse background and
experience of the three independent non-executive Directors.
Further, the Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditor and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code is appropriate in such
circumstance. Except for the deviation from the said Corporate
Governance Code Provision A.2.1, the Group’s corporate
governance practices have complied with the Corporate
Governance Code.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board met three times in fiscal year of 2018 to discuss
and approve the overall business plans; to review and monitor
the financial and operating performance of the Group and its
business units respectively; and to consider and approve the
audit planning, budget, the financial reports and
corporate governance related policies and practices for the
Group. Notice of at least 14 days was given to all Directors for
regular board meetings in order to give them an opportunity to
attend. For other board meetings, notice was given in a
reasonable time in advance.

annual
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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TEXERME(E)

BOARD PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

All' Directors have full and timely access to all
information in relation to the Company. There are established
procedures for Directors to seek independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities,
where appropriate, at the Company’s expenses.

relevant

During the year, Directors have made active participation in the
Board meetings and Board Committees meetings.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded in sufficient detail
the matters considered by the Board. The minutes of all Board
meetings and all other committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available upon prior appointment
for inspection by any Directors, auditors or any relevant eligible
parties who are entitled to have access to such information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an
Audit Committee and a Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference.

EEERF(E)
MEBEEEHAZEAMERHESEEAR
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EEZET
EZgRTCNUFHEES BERZEER
REZBE BAREZHESRE -

Board of Directors

EFg

Audit Committee
BZEEE

Remuneration Committee
*ﬁ@' = El

Nomination Committee

}E%é/\ =

(2 out of 3 are independent non-executive Directors)

(=B EBELHBTESE) (2EBBELHFBTESE)

(all independent non-executive Directors)

(2 out of 3 are independent non-executive Directors)

(=B HE BB LHBTESE)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEE (&)
Remuneration Committee FMEES
Membership of remuneration
Name of Director committee EERS FMESERE
Executive Director: HITEE -
Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of remuneration BEELAE FTMEEEKE
(Chairman & Chief committee (EERITHAEZ)
Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHHITEE -
Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Member of remuneration HEEZEE FMEZEEKE
committee
Mr. WONG Man Fai Chairman of remuneration XL AE FTMEESER
committee

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including the advice of independent
professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible to consider
and approve the remuneration packages of Directors and
Senior Management of the Group, including salaries, benefits in
kind and bonuses; bonus schemes and other long-term
incentive schemes, including share option and other plans.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in fiscal year of
2018. Each member’s attendance record during the year is
shown on page 42 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

2018

o Reviewed, discussed and approved the proposed
organisation chart of the Group which involves
reorganisation of different business units and reallocation
of reporting lines, posts and responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

AN\

TEXERME(E)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEg(E)

Audit Committee EREES

Name of Director Membership of audit committee EEnA BEREEERE

Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHHITESE -

Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Chairman of audit committee %‘B%\%?ﬁi BEZEEGER

Mr. CHOW Alexander Member of audit committee WMERE BEZEZEENKE
Yue Nong

Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of audit committee ETXEEAE EZZLZEBEENKE

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on %V; SeBEHED HERE M EAR

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and their
audit fees; meeting with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit; reviewing the Company’s
financial statements and interim and annual reports before they
are submitted to the Board; discussing problems and
reservations arising from the interim review and final audit, and
any other matters the external auditor may wish to discuss, and
reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter and
management’s response; considering any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and giving due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s external auditor and compliance
officer (if any); reviewing the internal audit programs and to
ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditor,
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; discussing the risk management and
internal control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company; and acting
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Board has delegated the risk management responsibilities
to the Audit Committee to oversee and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures that
have been in place.

The Board discharges the corporate governance responsibilities
through delegation to the Audit Committee the responsibilities of
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management of
the Company; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual applicable to Directors and
employees of the Group; and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Audit Committee met two times in fiscal year of 2018.
Each member’s attendance record during the year is shown on
page 42 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

2018

o Reviewed the 2018 preliminary
announcement; interim financial report; preliminary annual
results announcement and annual financial statements
with management and external auditor, and
recommended their adoption by the Board;

interim results

° Reviewed with the group operating officer — compliance
the Company’s internal control systems and the periodic
audit reports prepared by the group operating officer —
compliance and approved the 2018 audit plan;

° Reviewed the Dividend Policy and made recommendations
to the Board for approval;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of
2018 (Continued)

Met with the external auditor to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-
audit services provided by the external auditor, together
with its respective fees;

Reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function and compliance with the CG Code;

Reviewed the business budget for the fiscal year of 2019;

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

Reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to Directors and employees;

Reviewed the status of compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code; and

Held private session with external auditor in the absence
of executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of
2018 (Continued)

The Board has approved a Dividend Policy in December 2018.
The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to

EEZEg(E)
EREES (&)
EFERAR B20185 B FEFrES TEAEAZ (&)

meimﬂ FEeCE—EREBREKAK
NA AR RD AR EREETE XA E R R

shareholders of the Company to be its goal. It is the policy of MRAHERE - EE &£ 5K HEK RS 77 Y
the Board, in declaring or recommending a payment of HKEIAFRED ZARQ A HMEAR A
dividends, to allow Shareholders to participate in the THREREIERKERE -
Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.
The Audit Committee reviews regularly the corporate BZEZES@TFHBRAARRZDEERRE
governance structure and practices within the Company and K& @ UHEEREBE I ABBR -
monitors compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.
Nomination Committee REZES
Membership of nomination
Name of Director committee EEnE REZEERE
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of nomination committee mEEEA RELZEEKE
(Chairman & Chief (FEFTHAEE)
Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive Directors: ?éi’j FFHMTESE
Mr. CHOW Alexander Chairman of nomination committee WELE REEZECER
Yue Nong
Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of nomination committee T EEAE REZLZEBEEKE

40 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

%



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

AN\

TEXERME(E)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee also reviews the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender and age) of the Board; Director’'s time
commitment; policies in relation to nomination of Director and
Board diversity. The Committee would identify and determine
the measurable objectives for achieving board diversity and
monitor any progress made in achieving such measurable
objectives. The Committee also recommends to the Board on
appointment or reappointment of and succession planning for
Director and chief executive officer.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in fiscal year of
2018. Each member’s attendance record during the year is
shown on page 42 of this Annual Report.

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

2018

° Reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the mix of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and
experience of the Directors) of the Board;

° Reviewed and updated the Board Diversity Policy;

° Reviewed the Nomination Policy and made
recommendations to the Board for approval;

° Reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/her
duties; and

° Assessed and confirmed the independence of all

independent non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TERERERE(E)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

2018 (Continued)

Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings,
Remuneration Committee Meetings, Audit Committee Meetings,
and Nomination Committee Meetings during the fiscal year of

2018 are as follows:

EEZ8g(H)
RERE®(H)

LZEEEE

BmLHERBERINGOT

R2018HEFE REENEFEEZ

Eeemikiink8eg

P

BRE

Meetings Attended/Held

R R 520185 B FE TR HI L fE#E (&)

/\/\—\é

#r B

HERE /ERRY
Remuneration Nomination Overall
Board Committee Audit Committee Committee Attendance Rate
Name %4 Ezg ¥Mzee ERZEE REZ88 BEHER
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. TANG Kwai Chang BEY A 3/3 11 /90 N/ATE A 100%
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong BARERE 3/3 N/ATE 2/2 /1@ 100%
Mr. WONG Man Fai IXELRE 3/3 1/10 2/2 11 100%
Executive Directors BTEE
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEERE 3/3@ 1/1 2/20 1/1 100%
Mr. WU Kam On Keith SRR EE 3/30 1/10 2/20 1/10 100%
Ms. FAN Yee Man B A 3/3 N/AN 8 A N/AN 8 A N/ATN 8 A 100%
Average Attendance of the Board EZ&H & ¥ 1 100%
Members HE &
Group Chief Financial Officer SEERHEAE
Ms. FAN Yee Man B A N/AN 8 A N/AN 8 A 2/20 N/AN 8 A N/AN 8
Group Operating EEEEE-ARAN
Officer — Compliance
Ms. LAW Wan Yee Sandy BRELT N/ATN 8 A N/ATN 8 A 2/20 N/ATN 8 A N/ATN 8 A
External Auditor SR
Emst & Young RABHEDEBH N/AT i B N/AT i 2/20 N/AT i B N/AT i B
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

AN\

TEXERME(E)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Summary of work done during and for the fiscal year of

2018 (Continueqd)
Notes:

(@) Chairman of the Board

(b)  Secretary of the Board/Committee

(¢) Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
(d)  Chairman of the Audit Committee

(e) Chairman of the Nomination Committee

(f) Attendance by invitation

During the year under review, the chairman of the Board also
met with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting.
Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by shareholders
are published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General
Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s
Bye-laws, all the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term of not more than
three years under their letters of appointment. Pursuant to the
Company’s current Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and one-third (or the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Induction programs are arranged for any newly appointed
Directors on the general business of the Company. On
appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements and the Board
procedures, including the terms of reference of the Board
Committees. Directors are provided with “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry, “Guidelines for
Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Directors as
guidelines on the general principles of duties of directors,
Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors issued by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors (if applicable) and Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission.

Induction programs had been organised for three newly
appointed Directors, namely, Mr. TANG Kwai Chang, Mr. Chow
Alexander Yue Nong and Mr. WONG Man Fai. The newly
appointed Directors were provided an induction program kit
immediately subsequent to his/her directorship appointment.

The Company Secretary regularly provides to Directors
information about the enrollment of external training courses
and seminars as well as legal alerts and articles which are
relevant for Directors to keep up-to-date on any legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance requirements and with
professional practices in a dynamic business world. The
program would help refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in
relation to their performance of the roles, functions and duties
of directors of a listed company.

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to senior management of the
Company in this highly competitive consumer product market.
Senior Management is encouraged to participate in various
CPD programs at the expense of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME(EFE)

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors
participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training and/or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

EEREIRFEEXRE (&)

HE2018F12A31HIEFERN MEEEESE
BamEIk, SHBEBERARRAELKNES
BENETHOMH2EBRENTETIELRRE
SEE o

Attending professional
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant
to directors’ duties,
regulatory updates

Reading regulatory

Reading materials

and business

updates and relating to business HEERESHK
directors’ duties and industry EEREEHR
MEEERACESN MEEREER ES €3RI -0
EHREZRE TENER Mg &5
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEERE v v
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith PR % 5k £ y v
Ms. Fan Yee Man B2 g R v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITEE
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang BEY 4 v v
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong AR E%E v v
Mr. Wong Man Fai IXBEE v V
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS EEEME

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements
for FY2018 are prepared on a going-concern basis. All the new
accounting standards and policies adopted by the Company
have been thoroughly discussed and approved at the Audit
Committee before adoption by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

The Group has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the
“Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required standards
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Code is also applicable
to the specified group of employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information. Specific enquiries were
made of all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2018.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the fiscal year of 2018. Directors have also
disclosed to the Company their interests as director and other
office in other public companies and organisation in a timely
manner, and have regularly reported to the Company Secretary
on any subsequent changes.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to review the Board
effectiveness and to identify areas for improvements. The
chairman of the Board has also been evaluated on whether he
has adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled
his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board. Such
evaluation is usually conducted once a year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board
and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, shareholders and senior
management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME(EFE)

COMPANY SECRETARY (Continued)

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to
the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction
programme of Directors. All members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies

and procedures and organizational structures which aims to:

— ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;

— achieve effective and efficient corporate processes;

— safeguard the value of corporate assets;

— ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

— ensure the operations comply with all existing rules, policies
and regulations.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The group operating officer — compliance plays a critical role
in monitoring the internal governance of the Company.

The group operating officer — compliance act as an
independent role to perform reviews over the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems. She also assesses the risks inherent in
particular business or functional areas, including fraud or
corruption, and conducts reviews or audits to provide
reasonable assurance that adequate governance and controls
are in place to address such risks.

The group operating officer — compliance reports to the Audit
Committee and administratively to chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer. The group operating officer -
compliance was granted with the authority of unrestricted
access to all aspects of the Company’s activities and internal
controls. This helps the group operating officer — compliance
to provide an independent and objective assurance to the Audit
Committee on whether the control environments within the
Company are adequate.
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TRERME (EF)

INTERNAL AUDIT (Continued)

The group operating officer — compliance carries out
independent review of key business processes and controls in
accordance with its annual audit plan reviewed and approved
by the Audit Committee. The annual audit plan is prepared
using a risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the Company structure, organisational change, overall
materiality of each business unit, management’s concern,
nature and complexity of operation and operating environment.
The risk assessment methodology assists in identifying
business risks and determining audit frequencies. The group
operating officer — resources
focusing on high risk areas.

compliance schedules her

The scope of work performed by Group Internal Audit includes
review of entity wide controls, business process control review,
project based operational audit review, compliance review and
information technology system review. In particular, business
process review focuses on financial reporting controls and
control testing would be performed on assessing the operating
effectiveness. Business process review is performed on a
continuous basis and aim to cover all major operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries on a cyclical basis. Project based
operation audit review focuses on specific areas with high
perceived risks and management concerns. Group Internal
Audit also conducts special review, investigations, consulting
and advisory services related to corporate governance and
controls as required by management or the Audit Committee.

Results of audit reviews are compiled in internal audit reports
and sent to senior management of the Company for process
improvement and rectification on a timely basis. Remediation
actions have been developed collaboratively by the
management and operational teams to rectify the control
weaknesses identified. All critical audit findings and control
weaknesses are summarised and presented to the Audit
Committee for their knowledge and/or attention.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
The risk governance structure and the roles and responsibilities
of each layer are listed below:

Board/Audit Committee ¢ Take the overall responsibility for risk management
e Establish the structure for risk management
e Approve operational risk policy and risk management
procedures
e Understand and review group most significant risks
e Determine strategic approach to risk and set risk appetite

e Consider major incident findings and management
response

Risk management & ¢ Develop and update the risk management policy
operation control and risk register
team (“RMOC”) e Co-ordinate the risk management and internal
control activities
e Co-ordinate committees, contingency and
recovery plan
e Review major investigation findings on incidents
e Compile risk information and prepare reports for
the Board/Audit Committee

Internal audit e Develop a risk-based internal audit programme
e Audit the risk processes across the organisation
e Receive and provide assurance on risk
management
e Report on the efficiency and effectiveness of
internal control

Department heads e Build risk aware culture within the depts.
e Agree risk management performance targets
e Ensure implementation of risk improvement
recommendations
e |dentify and report changed circumstances/risks
Individual employees

Spokespersons e Consider materiality of information disclosed to
external parties
e Delivery disclosed information to relevant
stakeholders

Individual employees ¢ Understand, accept and implement risk
management process
e Report inefficient, unnecessary or unworkable
controls
e Report loss events and near miss incidents
e Co-operate with management on incident
investigations
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TERERRE(E

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS FElEEBRE

Our risk management process is embedded in our dally FHfIZEKREEBEMARMABTEE PiE

operations, financial activities, compliance, strategy &% ARKBEBEEREBLHE RETHL

development and business planning, investment decision and SMEfE % - BT ¢

external factors. The process are as follows:

Process Risk Identify the risks through department heads and 872 % 3! R E R & E R (TR

Identification Risk Management and Operation Control = B EREREBEE]) I“é%b”n'lﬂ %

("RMOC”)
Identify the risks that have a potential to BRI RE A R B E B R IK TSR
negatively affect the business strategic plan of THZ &z AR
the Group
Consider the materiality of the impact of the risk ZRERBIFERBTERXN
Access the relevancy to the business strategic A E IS RIS T E 2 HEEIRE R
plan and the level of potential impact of the HATEBRBAE 2 BELER
delivery of the business strategic plan E

Risk Analysis Conduct a quantity measurement on its inherent % #7 [ B& HABRREE B TRAREEKX
risk level, residual risk level and target risk level BEERBRIEE  E#T2lHiT
Assess the risk severity according to its level of BIERR 2R E RERS 4K
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event REBESHZzH®Ee X/ FEHRER
becoming actual event RERE
Determine the severity with reference to the D2EBREEE  TELZERKA
historical data, reference from the industry and HHE BETBRERE -
own judgment

Risk Evaluation Identify the risks and assess the options available #F{# & k& o A1) [ B e BT A AT 4R 5 B 2 fMO% -
to accept, mitigate or avoid the risks AR - A7 & ROB 2[R B
Decide the appropriate response in terms of its REBEE 2 B FE - LA B A
effectiveness
Establish the priorities in responding the risks 2B ER B 2R

Risk Treatment Selecting the risk treatment options REER KR PERREEEE

Preparing and implementing risk treatment plans
RMOC Director shall make a formal report to the
Audit Committee for reporting the latest risk
landscape on a regular basis
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME(EFE)

RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

o Risk Register
RMOC provides a risk register template for systematic
and consistent presentation of identified risks. For each
risk, there is a separate page which displays the details of
the risk, the risk severity presented in the format of risk
assessment matrix, the internal controls/mitigation
measures and the actions for improving the risk
mitigation.

o Control Self-Assessment (“CSA”)
The Group adopts the CSA process to provide
reasonable assurance that risks are properly managed
and business objectives can be met. It also promotes risk
awareness and the importance of up-keeping effective
internal controls.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS EFFECTIVENESS

The group operating officer — compliance has conducted
annual review of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system, including those of its
operating companies. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
findings and impartial opinion of group operating officer —
compliance on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2018. No
significant areas of concern that might affect the financial,
operational and compliance issues and risk management
functions of the Company were identified. The scope of this
review also covered the adequacy of resources, qualification
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, financial
reporting and internal audit functions and their training and
budget.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME (EF)

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company
is aware of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules
and Securities and Futures Ordinance and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced as soon
as reasonably practicable after such information comes to our
attention unless it falls within any of the Safe Harbours
provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Company has had a system in place with established policies
and procedures for complying with the Inside Information
disclosure requirements under the regulatory regime. Every
Directors have been provided with the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company has included in its code of
conduct and staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company by shareholders at the last Annual General
Meeting. An amount of HK$2.0 million was charged for the
fiscal year of 2018 for statutory audits for the Company and
subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services
provided by Ernst & Young for the Company and subsidiaries
during the year was HK$0.6 million, mainly comprised of (i)
interim review of the financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2018; (iij provision of advisory
services for the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 and (iii)
tax compliance and advisory services.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the

2018 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 71 to 78.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME(EFE)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene General
Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right
to vote at general meetings are entitled to send a request to
the Company to convene a general meeting. Such request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. A request may be sent to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s registered office in hard copy form or in
electronic form to ir@twcoffee.com and must also be
authenticated by the person or persons making it.

Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation of
statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or at least 50 shareholders, who
have a relevant right to vote, can request the Company in
writing to circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting or other
business to be dealt with at that meeting. A request may be
sent to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered
office in hard copy form or in electronic form to
ir@twcoffee.com and must identify the statement to be
circulated. It must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it and be received by the Company at least seven days
before such meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder wishes to
propose a person other than a retiring Director for election as
a Director at a general meeting, the shareholder should deposit
a written notice of nomination and a written consent signed by
such nominated candidate (the “Candidate”) indicating his/her
willingness to be elected together with (i) the biographical
details of the Candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”); (i) the
Candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her
personal information; and (i) contact details, including address
and telephone number, of the Candidate to the Company
within the 7-day period commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting and in no event ending
no later than seven days prior to the date appointed for such
meeting. The procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are also published on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Company’s Bye-laws were amended upon Listing on the
Listing Date. A copy of the Bye-laws of the Company is
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERME(EFE)

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the Company’s information. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy is posted on the
Company’s website.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.twcoffee.com)
to keep Shareholders and the investing public posted of the
Company’s share price information, latest business
developments, final and interim
financial reports, public announcements, corporate governance
relevant shareholder

results announcements,

policies and practices and other
information.

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue,
including the appointment and re-election of Directors will be
proposed by the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting and
will be voted on by poll. The detailed procedures of conducting
a poll will be explained by the Chairman at the commencement
of the Annual General Meeting to ensure that Shareholders are
familiar with such procedures. The poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the
same day following the Annual General Meeting.
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Directors’ Report

EEE®mE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company. The
Company has established a principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Flats F=J, 11th Floor, Block One, Kwai Tak Industrial
Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong and has been registered as a non-Hong Kong
company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently, the
Company, through its subsidiaries, primarily engages in (i)
processing and sale of coffee, tea and related complementary
products; (i) sale of frozen meat and frozen processed food; (iii)
sale and rental of coffee and tea machines; and (iv) food and
beverage store operations.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in
Note 4 to the financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and important events affecting the Group
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2018 are
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 10 to 24 of this Annual Report. Further, a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group can be found in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 8 to 9 of this Annual Report. These
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHRE(E)

SHARE CAPITAL
The movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, contributed surplus and retained earnings. As at 31
December 2018, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$433.8 million. in the Company’s
during the year in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

Movements
is set out

reserves

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.78 cents per ordinary share (2017: HK1.62 cents) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018.

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 18 April 2019. Upon
Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or before Friday, 17
May 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 26 April 2019.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 11 to the financial
statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 15 April 2019 to Thursday, 18 April 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 April 2019.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend, if
approved, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Friday, 26 April 2019, during which no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to receive the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 April 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESEHREE)

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interests which any such person has or may have
with the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report are set out on page 31.

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang, Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong and Mr.
Wong Man Fai were appointed as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company on 15 December 2017 with effect
from the Listing Date.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is satisfied that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent as defined under the Listing Rules.

confirmation of his

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Wong Tat
Tong and Mr. Wu Kam On Keith will retire from their offices as
executive Director at the AGM to be held on Thursday, 18
April 2019. Mr. Wong Tat Tong and Mr. Wu Kam On Keith,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 29
of this Annual Report.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Tat Tong ceased to be a director of and Mr. Wu
Kam On Keith ceased to be a director and company secretary
of Tsit Wing (China) Caterer Limited (“TWCC”), which was
deregistered on 15 June 2018.

Ms. Fan Yee Man ceased to be a director and Mr. Wu Kam On
Keith ceased to be the company secretary of Global Tea
Trading Company Limited, which was deregistered on 15 June
2018.

Mr. Wong Tat Tong ceased to be a director and Mr. Wu Kam
On Keith ceased to be the company secretary of Tsit Wing
Frozen Food Company Limited, which was deregistered on 22
February 2019.

Saved as disclosed above, there is no information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has
entered into a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable within one vyear without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The Directors’
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, while also
making reference to the complexity of the Director’'s work,
workload, responsibilities, as the Company’s
remuneration policies. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest-paid individuals of the Group are set out in
Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

remuneration shall be determined based on

as well
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
each director and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
directors and chief executives were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

Number of underlying
Shares comprised in
options granted under

EEERORAEBROER KR
v}

R2018F12H31H » AR AIZREZEREETH
ABREEFEZBBE ARAR R R K& HF [ 85
EFE(ERAEFRBAEGRAI((EFHFRRAEK
Bl]) EXVER) B IR 1D - BRI REEES %
ERBEFSFLHAGEOIEXVEE7 k87 HBE A
EARARIRBIMOERNARS (BREBEE
FREBERIIEEGRXESREIETHRASR
EEIBRABEENEZNMAERE)  KBREFZES
N HEIEMEXVEBEISMEBRABEELNAR
AIRBEZ G AGESCEMANESAR
BB EETRIENE AR A KB FTH
mAKBIAT

(@) RAQANER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

the Pre-IPO Share as at
Number of Option Scheme 31 December 2018
Name of Executive Director  Nature of Interest Shares held (Note 4) Total (Note 2)
HRBERABREN
BRESTHRENER
RARNEERD HE 120185123318 M #5
HTESH S EEME FERGO#E (M E4) A RENBIL(IEH2)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong (“Mr. Interest in controlled 478,899,312 N/A 478,899,312 62.84%
Wong’) (Note 3) corporation; beneficial TER
owner
FEERE((EREDNH) XEiEER B
EEA
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith Beneficial owner 412,800 963,200 1,376,000 0.18%
PBHELE ExBAA
Ms. Fan Yee Man Beneficial owner 275,400 642,600 918,000 0.12%

#aeME EE@AA

—F\FEF BEBRERARAT 61



A AN

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHE(E)

(b)

Name of Director

Notes:

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company were long positions. None of the
Directors of the Company held any short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2018.

Based on the Company’s issued share capital of
762,071,112 shares as at 31 December 2018.

Mr. Wong directly holds the entire issued share capital of
Hero Valour Limited which holds 62.84% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

All these interests held by such Directors were underlying
shares in respect of share options granted to them on 15
December 2017 pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, further details of which are set out in Note 27 to
the financial statements.

Interests in Associated Corporation

Nature of associated
corporation

(b)

AR TR R AR D RS A AT
B R2018F12A831H * KA A EEH
EBRARRRRG REEROFEEAR -

AR D TR2018F 12 A31 A B 1T,
AR762,071,1120 D5+ & -

=& E H ZE#H AHero Valour Limited®
ZE BT RY AN - MHero Valour Limited
REARRREBITRABENGC2.84% °

ZEEZMFEHERRBR2017F12A
15 1R 35 B A B 3% & Bl B IR a8 3%
THRENEREMSHEBARG @ EL5
15 R B 75 3] = Y 5£27 ©

RAEBEZENERS

Number of Share

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
as at

held 31 December 2018
72018F12A31H K

EEgE AL E &R FERGHEE ERBNES
Mr. Wong Hero Valour Limited 1 100.00%
|mEAE Hero Valour Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
each of the persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRRKRAD K AR Ay #E

N2

o
2018 12H31H * MM AR RIRIBESH K8
BB E3B6IETFEMERMATIR U TAL
(RAREETREEZTHABRINRAEARF
B REEARNDAEEHERRNAR B BT
PR A% S LA FiE s ROK A

Number of ordinary shares
(long position)

EBER¥E (FR)

Directly % of total

beneficially issued share

Name of Shareholder owned (Note 2)
HEBTRG

-8 =

IR R & B EnERES (Mf7E2)
Hero Valour Limited (Note 1) (Bff#E1) 478,899,312 62.84%

Notes:
1. Hero Valour Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 762,071,112
shares as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no
person, other than the executive Directors, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

B 7
1. Hero Valour Limitedd &k 4+ 2 EHAH -

2. AN FN2018F12A831H K 2 2 17 ik &
762,071,112 BX 5 5 & -

B E AT E SN 0 A20185F12A31H « #E A
T(HBEEREXESMHERO RBBERKRAG
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Bl E336IE ATtk EERBEIAR ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are disclosed
in Note 27 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a Director
or any person engaged in the full-time employment of the
Company, concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2018.

REMUNERATION FOR SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the senior management by bands are as
follows:

& R RE ST &
A B 8 IR 5T 81 10 31 30 B 7% 3R 2% 37
PO -

RADNRERE
BREARAMERNAREHNARREEH
ME - AARRAFRAH—ERF ETRA
FRENARFRBART -

BEERZS  RHERE M-S

BMEXARARKEEAMBRARRTHTMmMA
RAEERETBEAEARGARNFRAF
NEMBRFENERRS  LHAEH -

EERBEFERIHES

FA BEFARAR/REMNBARNES
S BEFERBEZTECREEBREAERR L
T A5 ) B B X B R R [ S TS A A T SR AT
FEHF (ERAREIERNEETHEEE
{] #E 5

EEEK

REZE2018F12A31H IEFER - BEFT L3,
FEEBARRZMREMERNLDXBH
EERTBENEHN(REEFHARFEMNEZR
BEFATMERE S KIBRIN) o

= AR E E E &

SREEENFMEENT

it

Number of individuals

AR
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £1,500,0007% JT. 2
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 230 and 286
(81 December 2017: 234 and 272) employees in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, respectively.

Remuneration packages are generally structured in reference to
qualifications, experience, performance and market term. The
Company has also adopted share option schemes, details of
which are set forth under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” in the Prospectus and Note 27 to the financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group provided
various trainings to its employees range from operation skill
such as occupational safety training and machine control
training to professional knowledge including management
system and business knowledge, to ensure the effective
implementation of the Group’s business strategy.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
transaction is a continuing connected transaction as defined in
the Listing Rules which is subject to the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Whole Sun has entered into a frozen food supply agreement
(the “Frozen Food Supply Agreement”) with Oriole International
dated 15 December 2017. Oriole International is principally
engaged in trading of chilled and frozen food.

Pursuant to the Frozen Food Supply Agreement, Whole Sun
has agreed to supply frozen food including meat and seafoods
to Oriole International. The Frozen Food Supply Agreement is
for a period of three years commencing from 1 January 2018.
There is no minimum purchase amount stipulated in the Frozen
Food Supply Agreement nor is the Group bound to supply
frozen food to Oriole International. The purchase quantity and
the purchase prices shall be specified in individual purchase
order to be placed by Oriole International.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the annual cap and the
actual amount paid for the non-fully exempt continuing

connected transaction are as follows:

HE2018F12A31HILFE - Iz HERRR
BREXSNFELIRAERENESBUOT

Actual amount

Annual cap

Connected Persons Nature of relationship purchased (HK$) (HK$)
ERCKBSH
BEAL BEME (B 7T) FELERGERT)
Oriole (note) Associate of a director of 382,000 1,000,000
a subsidiary of the
Group
R = (M) REE-—HRBRARINE
EHBEAL
Oriole International Associate of a director of 34,575,000 40,500,000

R = B R

a subsidiary of the

Group
AEE—HBRARINE

ENBMEAL

Note:

66

Whole Sun previously supplied frozen food to Oriole. Due to
internal restructuring of the companies held by Mr. Chu Cho
Wing, starting from 1 January 2018, Oriole International has
replaced Oriole as the entity purchasing of frozen food from
Whole Sun. Although Oriole has ceased to place purchase
order with Whole Sun since 1 January 2018, there were still
certain transactions taking place between Oriole and Whole Sun
during the year ended 31 December 2018 in relation to
settlement of the purchase orders placed by Oriole with Whole
Sun prior to 1 January 2018 and related storage services.
Oriole and Whole Sun had entered into a frozen food supply
agreement dated 15 December 2017 to govern these
transactions with the estimated total amount for the above
transactions between Whole Sun and Oriole for the year ended
31 December 2018 did not exceed HK$1.0 million. This
agreement expired on 31 December 2018. Starting from 1
January 2019, the only non-fully exempted continuing
connected transaction would be between Whole Sun and Oriole
International.
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The Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the agreement governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors), have reviewed and confirmed that, except for the
continuing connected transactions as stated in the prior
paragraphs, all other continuing connected transactions entered
by the Group are exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt from the
reporting, review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

annual

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.
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In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in Note
34 to the financial statements, the Company confirms that it
has reviewed the transactions which are complied with the
relevant requirements under the Listing Rules (if applicable).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, other than the non-compliance
matter disclosed in the Prospectus in relation to a parcel of
collective-owned land with an area of approximately 7,153.3
sg. meters in Dongguan, Mainland China (“Dongguan Dormitory
Land”) and a building on the Dongguan Dormitory Land which
the Group uses as employee dormitories and canteen with an
aggregate gross floor area of approximately 5,388.7 saq.
meters, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 and during the year, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group followed the instructions
of the Dongguan Municipal People’s Government to go through
the process to obtain the land use rights of Dongguan
Dormitory Land by means of the tender invitation, auction or
listing procedure or any other relevant application procedures.

ESG POLICIES AND PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to building a sustainable future. It
assesses the materiality of various ESG issues and take
measures to control the environmental and social impacts
during operations. All businesses are required to comply with all
applicable ESG laws and regulations strictly. The Group strives
to minimize its environmental impacts through effective air
emissions control, superior water and energy efficiency, proper
waste management and resources conservation. The Group
also puts effort into creating positive social impacts by
protecting labour right and maintaining integrity. Discussion on
the Group’s ESG initiatives, performance and applicable ESG
in the standalone

laws and regulations can be found

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important and valuable
assets and thus it provides competitive and attractive
remuneration packages to retain the employees.

The management reviews annually the remuneration to its
employees of the Group. The Group values long standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group aims
at delivering high quality services to its customers and
developing mutual trust and enhancing communication and
commitment between the Group and its suppliers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the percentages of
purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 17.0% and 36.9%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 21.9% and
32.4%, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or any of their close associates, or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes of the Company as
disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
or the relevant laws of the Bermuda where the Company is
incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under review.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEHRE(E)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with
protection and to adopt effective measures to achieve efficient
use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

laws and regulations regarding environmental

DONATIONS

During the vyear, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately HK$174,000 (2017:
HK$150,000).

FOUR YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last four
financial years is set out on pages 205 and 208 of this Annual
Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no subsequent event between the end of the
reporting period (i.e. 31 December 2018) and the date of this
Annual Report that would cause material impact on the Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM. Ernst & Young, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

resolution for the re-

By order of the Board
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited
Mr. Wong Tat Tong
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 5 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BUED RS

e
EY::

To the members of Tsit Wing International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsit
Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 204, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RS (E)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Staterments section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide

FRESSEE
MREFFTFESREAMANERHE  RRY
AREEMBRERNEBARREENSTH &
LERRERMBIFEBRAMBERLG
AEARETEEN RMATSHELEHE
HEBNER - HTHEER BARETE
BT RIEE —FHA R o

R RITARE [ FH IR FEEA SN HEHR
XEAEHEEIRBOFAANEL  BRZAFF
HWEE - Bt - MW EA BRRITER
NEH H IR E B RRENERRAR
RERE RPN EAEF(BREENTS
TR ERENHAE Fr) B0 48 2R - 73 Tk P9 T BB Y O 4R
EMBBRABRNETERIBHER -

the basis for our
consolidated financial statements.

audit opinion on the accompanying

Key audit matter

HREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFTNNEEFERENER

Impairment of trade receivables

& 5 B W5 H B E

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade
receivables of HK$163,848,000, representing
approximately 19% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
were required in assessing the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) for the trade receivables, with reference to the
grouping of various customer segments, ageing profile
of the trade receivable balances, existence of
disputes and past repayment history of customers
and forecast economic conditions.
M20185F12A31H: E XS BB S5 EBKARER
163,848,000 7T * 1f EEEREEL19% - FHHE
SRR FENEPEEBE(FEREEER]) FAE
HEXRABMMEST K2EEEFSBLE BHE
WHRIBESRERE TP AUD KBEENE L KK
ik St TR o

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

MR BEHNGAE M RRME3R18 -

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment,
our procedures included: (i) obtaining confirmations
and evidence of subsequent settlements for selected
trade receivable balances on a sample basis; and (ii)
evaluating management’s assumptions used to
determine the ECL through testing of the underlying
information on the ageing reports generated by the
Group’s financial reporting system and assessing the
repayment history of the debtors as well as the
forward-looking information with reference to the
related publicly available information.
AHEEREREN LR SRNERE - ()REELH
BRETHNEIRNESNEARERETNBARN IR
RiFEEREERANEECHEMEEERNRR  7&
RAR BEEBEFBRE RS EKRRER R EHH
SENAEEBABNELARKL2EZERBLRA
SEROEMEREE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RE (E)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FAREFETEEE)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNNEEBERESNER

AEETEE

Net realisable value of inventories
FEEEFE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded

inventories of HK$205,795,000, representing
approximately 24% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
were required in assessing the net realisable value of
the inventories, with reference to estimated selling
prices and saleability of the inventories and expected
future market and economic conditions that might
have an impact on the sales projections.
2018512318 » & % E $ 15 17 £205,795,000/8
7_5 h BEEEREEXN24% - HFEANERFE

REELEREEARNMGS K2EMAFAEEBRE
SREM - AR AR 2 #HE 18R 6 B R R 35 &
B R 5 o

The disclosures in relation to inventories and their net
realisable value are included in notes 3 and 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.
GFERAEERFENHERZRH
B 3E3 /K17 ©

R R & B ik

In evaluating management’s assessment, our
procedures included: (i) observing physical inventory
counts at major locations to ascertain the condition of
inventories; (i) obtaining an understanding of the net
realisable value assessments made by management;
(iii) reviewing the inventory shelf life report to identify
slow moving or obsolete inventories; and (iv)
comparing the actual selling prices of finished goods
subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to their
carrying amounts.
AEERENER  SRONBEFA (N EEMEAE
REMTFERY UBRAFEEMRR  HTHEEEY
AR FEMETME  (NFHEFEREHME - U#H
FEHIRERS « R(vVVRFEZ &R 8K m )
EREERREE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RS (E)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

inconsistent with the consolidated financial

is a material
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RE (E)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RS (E)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

influence the economic

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RE (E)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RS (E)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai Cary.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

5 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

,%T éﬁn%:z

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31H L FE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHE T FET

REVENUE PN 5 1,071,232 954,610
Cost of sales 85 & B AR (738,104) (664,996)
Gross profit el 333,128 289,614
Other income and gains, net = NS k- 5 2,969 3,998
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAZ (120,265) (112,245)
Administrative expenses ITE R (100,149) (109,743)
Other expenses, net Hap X F5E (11,998) (3,325)
Finance cost B & KA 6 (6,005) (4,126)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A % F 7 97,680 64,173
Income tax expense FIsBiRX 10 (20,200) (15,799)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R 77,480 48,374
Attributable to: D/(T}\ilf;iﬁ ;

Owners of the parent ISE/NETE? =N 75,784 46,095

Non-controlling interests 3H 1% 7 2= 1,696 2,279

77,480 48,374
HK cents HK cents
BAL A

EARNINGS PER SHARE BAAEEEREEA

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEERAER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT 12

Basic AR 10.71 7.46

Diluted B 10.68 7.46
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AN =<
,%T =) =2 E LI& m %
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 ASIH L FE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F AR 77,480 48,374
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ Ha2m (F518), W=
INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that BERHIMATEEETN DB EE R
may be reclassified to profit or loss in MmEMEE (EER), M :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of HE BIINEBKHNEN =2
foreign operations (9,953) 11,526
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR ® R & H W= & %8
THE YEAR 67,527 59,900
Attributable to: AT ALERS:
Owners of the parent UNEGIET =N 65,831 57,621
Non-controlling interests JE 25 {7 7 1,696 2,279
67,527 59,900
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Consohdated Statement of Financial Position

B BB &R

nv-_l_\
31 December 2018
2018412 4318
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3E FERT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e e 13 102,683 108,021
Prepaid land lease payments A A &3 14 10,920 11,931
Goodwill 2 15 15,447 15,447
Intangible assets mEE 16 2,873 5,020
Deposits paid for purchases of items DB EWME  ME LR HE
of property, plant and equipment HE &% 3,602 2,760
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE - e REMER
other receivables A 19 3,819 3,616
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 24 2,783 678
Total non-current assets FEREBEEMLE 142,127 147,473
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories BB 17 205,795 195,370
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 18 163,848 170,353
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS L+ H M & K 14 393 415
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - e REMmEY
other receivables FRIE 19 19,577 19,885
Tax recoverable A Yz [B] 7% 18 1,117 2,352
Cash and cash equivalents BEFIREEEBY 20 328,684 45,613
Total current assets MENEEBAE 719,414 433,988
CURRENT LIABILITIES B A&
Trade and bills payables BZRENFIERENZE 21 91,240 91,624
Accruals and other payables FE 51 3R I8 & B FE 5 3R IR 22 49,904 59,187
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITERK 23 139,003 138,800
Tax payable FET R I8 4,079 2,349
Total current liabilities mEaEEEE 284,226 291,960
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 435,188 142,028
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERRBAE
LIABILITIES 577,315 289,501
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Consohdated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e B R R &R ()

31 December 2018

2018412 A31A
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FH&xT FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEERITIE K 23 17,217 52,759
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBAEE 24 5,771 4,682
Total non-current liabilities EmEBAERE 22,988 57,441
Net assets BEFE 554,327 232,060
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BAREE A
of the parent PE AL RE =
Share capital % AR 25 76,207 61,775
Reserves ki 26 460,301 152,394
536,508 214,169
Non-controlling interests JE =R E S 17,819 17,891
Total equity BB 554,327 232,060

Wong Tat Tong

HEE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Y YT

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 ASIHLEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAERAEE
Share Statutory ~ Exchange Non-
Share premium  Contributed reserve fluctuation Other Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus funds reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
37
RA ROEER HARHK EERAEE  RIHKE EtEE 27 @it rRER  EnlE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TEL TR TEL TR TEL TR TEL TR TEL TR
(note 26(a) (note 26(b)) (note 26(d))  (note 26(e))
(Mtikoe() (Miztoe)) (PHatoe(d)) (Hiztoe(e))
At 1 January 2017 201741 A18 61,753 169,878 - 3,425 (9,062) - 63,259 279,253 18,045 297,298
Profit for the year FREF = = = = = = 46,005 46,095 2,279 48,374
Other comprehensive income R E 1 2 U
for the year:
Exchange differences on REBNERH
translation of foreign EHER
operations - - - - 11,526 - - 11,526 - 11,526
Total comprehensive income for A2 E R HEE
the year - - - - 11,626 - 46,095 57,621 2,279 59,900
Issue of shares RARH 25(a) 22 = = = = = = 22 - 22
Reallocation of share premium R EEEHHE 26(a) - (159878) 159,878 = = = = = = =
Dividends R 11 - - (36,300) - - - (86,645  (122,945) - (122,945)
Dividend paid to non- XA THBAR R
controlling shareholders of BERRR S
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - (1242) (1,242)
Acquisition of a non-controlling 88 FF £ AR 4 2
interest 29 - - - - - 218 - 218 (1,191) 973)
Transfer from retained profts ~ B& AR = = = 1,026 = = (1,026) - - -
At 31 December 2017 20174127318 61,775 = 123,578 4,451* 2,464 218" 21,683 214,169 17,891 232,060
—E\FFH REERERERAA 83
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
REEZEER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 ASIH L FE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREA AR
Share Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Contributed reserve option fluctuation Other  Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EX
BE& ROREE HABRR AELRE BRERSE RIRE HERE REEN &t FEREE RBRAE
Notes HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i3 TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(note 26(a)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(c)) (note 26(d)) (note 26(e))
(MiE26(a)) (HisE26(b) (Hizt26(c)) (KizE26(d)) (Hi=t26(e))
At 31 December 2017 12017F12A31R 61,775 - 123,578 4,451 - 2,464 218 21,683 214,169 17,891 232,060
Effect of adoption of FRABH A‘%fai%‘%
HKFRS 9 BIES A2 2.2 - - - - - - - 1,508 1,508 - 1,508

At 1 January 2018 1201851618

(restated) C:27)) 61,775 - 123578 4,451 - 2,464 218 23191 215677 17,891 233,568
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - 75,784 75,784 1,696 77,480
Other comprehensive ~ FRE M2 AFE

loss for the year:

Exchange BREBMNERH

differences on EREZR

translation of

foreign

operations - - - - - (9,953) - - (9,953) - (9,953)
Total comprehensive FR2E(EE)/

(loss)/income for the hzes

year - - - - - (9,959) - 7578 65831 1696 67,527
Issug of shares under ~ BEBRAHEER

initl publc offering {71 25(0) 14211 267,165 - - - - - - 281376 - 28137
Share issue expenses  IRIAETTHAY - (17,001) - - - - - - (17,001) - (17,001)
Dividends R 1 - - - - - - - (18003 (18,003 - (18093
Dividend paid to SNl PNGE

non-controling BBRERE

shareholders of a

subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (1,768) (1,768)
Equity-settled share A B 5t B B

option arrangement ZH 27 - - - - 7,405 - - - 7,405 - 7,405
Issue of shares upon  171F B AR RS 317

exercise of share &

options 25(e) 221 4147 - - (3,055) - - - 1,313 - 1,313
Transfer of share option 3% Y B8 Ak 4 5 88 ¢

reserve upon forfeit BRERE

of share options - - - - (115) - - 115 - - -
Transfer from retained ~ E&ARA &

profits - - - 2,367 - - - (2,367) - - -
At 31 December 2018 H2018%12/31R 76207 254311 123578 6818 425 (T489F 218  78630° 536508 17819 554327
. These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREBEREEEASRS VBRI ROLER

HK$460,301,000 (31 December 2017: HK$152,394,000) in the & f# #460,301,0007% 7t (2017412 A31A :
consolidated statement of financial position. 152,394,000/8 Jt.) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\/\ Iﬁaﬁ J)1IL EZ:!%

Year ended 31 December 2018

B E2018F 12 A3IB ILFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3 FET F&T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR A% A1 A 97,680 64,173
Adjustments for: KLATIEEB A%
Interest income 7F|J Blg A 5 (2,858) (484)
Finance cost & & AR 6 6,005 4,126
Depreciation e 7 22,511 22,426
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EE 7 2,116 2,113
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  FE 15 + b Fl & 15 7% ¥ £
payments 7 409 400
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 e W IE R E 7 7,499 1,189
Equity-settled share option AR 45 5 B B AR M B 2
expense 7 7,405 —
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 & W SR IE i 5H 7 695 348
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of EME HENIEE
property, plant and equipment HE & ?E/(Hﬁlﬁﬁ) 7 484 (1,853)
Write-down of inventories to net BFE R ZE A E3R 5 E
realisable value 7 1,277 1,304
Write-off of inventories 7 & 38 7 1,176 501
144,399 94,243
Increase in inventories 7 &1 (16,761) (45,342)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e U IR 38 N (3,314) (39,059)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, JEftFIE - 24 [ H b fE UL
deposits and other receivables FRIE (3 ),/ (205) 2,360
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 ENNHREREMNEE
b )Ju 1,751 19,343
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and & nJr IE K E fth FE < 3%
other payables 4) /B (7,879) 14,900
Cash generated from operations KREMERS 117,991 46,445
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREEE ﬂ S 544 —
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREAMNGH (11,536) (16,770)
Overseas taxes paid B8N IR (7,114) (2,907)
Net cash flows from operating KRBTSR
activities mEFRE 99,885 26,768
—EF)FFEH FREEERERA 85
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

an\/\ Iﬁaﬁ JIL E% (nﬁ)

Year ended 31 December 2018

B E2018F12A3IB I FE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FH& T FA&T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZDHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BE ¥ - BiE MR EEE
and equipment (20,551) (15,428)
Deposits paid for purchases of items X {FEEBEME - WE & XE
of property, plant and equipment HB &S (2,277) (1,218)
Purchases of financial investments at 8 B & A FET ABHH
fair value through profit or loss EHMITE - (6,945)
Proceeds from redemption of Yl /NS T | qu)\TEI =)
financial investments at fair value TRIEEMSNRE
through profit or loss - 15,053
Advance to related companies EiE il /N - (3,135)
Proceeds from disposal of items of H&EWE  KEMKEHEE
property, plant and equipment Fr 15 38 868 4,472
Interest income received B2 U F 2 U A 2,776 60
Advance to the ultimate holding BRTHREERRAA
company - (19,431)
Net cash flows used in investing REEPHAREME
activities F R (19,184) (26,572)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares under &4 & X A Eﬂ%‘%%‘?ﬁ
initial public offering B 15 P15 3k 18 25(d) 281,376 —
Share issue expenses f& (DB 1T X2 (17,001) —
Proceeds from issue of shares upon 77 {£ E%Hx% RETIRG
exercise of share options FT 15 I8 25(e) 1,313 —
Proceeds from issue of shares %1TR 1D AT 8 2E 25(a) - 22
Dividends paid E 1 R% B 30(b) (18,093) (14,500)
Dividend paid to non-controlling 2 M B A R SRR
shareholders of a subsidiary % F A% 2 (1,768) (1,242)
New bank borrowings IR 1T I8 K 30(b) 417,334 458,718
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER 30(b) (452,655) (441,588)
Interest paid EENEIPS! (6,005) (4,126)
Acquisition of a non-controlling U B IF 28 PR A 2
interest - (973)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEBAE(FTA)
financing activities REeEMEFHE 204,501 (3,689)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBRSEEYWEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (B4) #58 285,202 (3,493)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUOREABEEEY
the beginning of the year 45,613 48,100
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNPE PE R B 52 B )F5E
changes, net (2,131) 1,006
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT £ RBRERBLEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 328,684 45,613
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH Re&RBESESEYE &
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Pl
Cash and bank balances H& RIBITE % 20 328,684 45,613
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 3R B RE

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at Flats F—J, 11/F, Block 1, Kwai Tak Industrial
Centre, 156-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong. In the opinion of the directors, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Hero Valour Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 May 2018 (the
“Listing Date”). During the year, the Company’s
subsidiaries were engaged in the following principal
activities:

° processing and sales of coffee, tea and related
complementary products

° sale of frozen meat and frozen processed food

° sale and rental of coffee and tea machines

° food and beverage store operations

AEIREEEHR
REBEBRERERAG(ARARA]) AT
BREGMAZINBR AR - KR FH
i fit #t = & AL M Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda ° N2 Al 89 & B & B 7 R
BB A R EFHIS- 3R EBEIES
DEAEEFIE - BEERE  ARFIH
EEERAQA R &EER AR BHero
Valour Limited * ZARINEBR LS
((RBEXES]) FEMAL -

KRR BEEZER AR - MARE KK
B ([ %] R2018F58118 ([ £ ™ H
HD)REABERSMABRRA A ([H R
FIDERLEM - ARAHNMMBRABRF
WNEETY EEERK :

e MITREEWLE  RRBBEEE

an
e HERRABLZREAHRM
o HHE N THUNTEH N IR

e RMEREKELE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1.

88

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. AREEER(E)

Cop: NCIE- R

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RAAREEWNBARFERT :
follows:
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
AWML R ROEE/ AR
% REXHH ot it R & EZE M IEREH
Direct  Indirect
E# 5
Dongguan Tsit Wing Food PRC/Mainland HK$78,880,000 - 100 Processing of coffee beans;
Co Ltd.* China distribution of coffee, tea,
and related complementary
products; and food and
beverage store operations
SEXRRBRA A hE/HRE XM 78,880,000/ T MIMEES - 5 HMBE - KR
EBREER : RmRER
EHEE
Shanghai Tsit Wing Food PRC/Mainland US$2,400,000 - 100  Trading of coffee, tea and
Co Ltd.* China related complementary
products; sale and rental of
coffee and tea machines;
and sale of frozen
processed food
FBRRRMARLDA L B A 2,400,000% T BEEWY XREEREE
o ¢ 3 E R E TR R R
BARHESRERR G
Tsit Wing Beverage Machine Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Trading of coffee machines
Company Limited and related products
ERERRBERARLA BB 28T BEEMD&RARER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AT REBEER (£Z)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
MK B ERTEE/ NN 3
8 REE®E at i iR 2 BEASL TEED
Direct  Indirect
E# &
Tsit Wing Coffee Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100  Processing of coffee beans;
Limited distribution of coffee, tea

and related complementary
products; sale and rental of
coffee and tea machines;
and sale of frozen
processed food
BEMBEERAR e 10,0003 7T MIMBET - S MY X R
HAREEm: HERMEE
MBER R A AREE =

REHEm

Tsit Wing (China) Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited

BR(PE)GEERAA e 28T REER

Tsit Wing (China) Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Investment holding
Limited

ER(PE)EREBRRA e 18T REER

Tsit Wing (China) Industrial Hong Kong HK$22,264,780 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited

ER(PE)EXERAA Bk 22,264,7807% 7T REZR

Tsit Wing (China) Trading Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited

BERHE)BESERAA e 18T REER

Tsit Wing (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,143,000 — 100  Investment holding
Limited

EREE(BE)ERAA Bk 5,143,000 7T REZR

Tsit Wing International Company  BVI US$10,276 100 — Investment holding
Limited*

AERAES 10,276% 7T REZR

—F\FEF BEBRERARAT 89
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AREBER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
HMRL/ BE ROLE/ . UNGY 3
£ REXHE ot fit AR A BB TEEH
Direct  Indirect
ER:: &
TWG Heritage Tea Company Hong Kong US$1,500,000 - 100  Investment holding
Limited
Bk 1,500,000 T REEZR
Whole Sun Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 60 Trading of frozen meat
BHESHBRAT B 100006z EEX SEAE
* The statutory financial statements of these companies are * ZERNAREERBRMRALRK k
not audited by Emnst & Young, Hong Kong or another X.B’%—Zﬁiﬁﬁ'——l—ﬁ’]%%iﬁﬂ\ﬁﬁ
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network Bz o
# These companies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned 8 ZERRBBEFBAEFZMA AN
enterprises established under PRC law EEERE-
On 10 January 2017, the Group acquired the remaining 201718108 * K & Y BETWG
20% equity interest in TWG Heritage Tea Company Heritage Tea Company Limited ([ TWG
Limited (“TWG Heritage”), thereby increasing its ownership Heritage J) & T H)20% A% # © A~ & B K A
interest from 80% to 100%. Further details are set out in EREEZAMASO%IE MEI00% - E%
note 29 to the financial statements. 5 15 E B 7K R 2R BT 520 o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 RREXE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. They are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$’000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

HEFBEBRRDIBBERT LSS
(FEEESEMAE])BEMELMBER
SEAN(EEHHREEL D (BEEE
BEEMBREER FEEHEN(E
BEERDERE) RBEELAREFIR
AlfRS -

It % B A5 3R R T IR E L AN B Bl AR B
HEBHBHRRAET(ET) 25 - K
SEERIN FELBRNEEREALT
B (FATT) °

SOtEE
BRAVBBREERARAIREWES QA
(i RIAEE]) R E £2018F12 A31
BLEFENRBHRR MBARAAEAR
AEEAHEEHNER(RELAELE
B) EASEEH2HAKEHRERNZ
FRIMAERBRIZEEMUAKES A
HIEEHENEHD(IAEBERE TIRE
BN EREW KBGO TRE
M) % L% 0 R - BDERAS 22 il 4 o

MARBERXEERFEFINKEHR
RZHRERBURENOEF - AIARE
BRI HEEREREHREHRNED
HReZE—HBETERBEL 8

(@) ERBEHREMEREFBEANAGH
Lk

b) HMAEHNTHMELNERN: &

© FEEHRERREELZE-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

92

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

1 EREE(E)

SOHEE(E)

fEBARMNMBHRRIER - B G
B - 3% BR R R AR ) B R AR
Ho-WMERANEEDHAKBEEREGE
HEEESEAEAR YHESSHAES

o

EEFHIERIEERRLE-

BELREMEZERANSKNDEERE
BERREEARFEFERELS  AIE
BB E B IR S B IR BB AR TT
R-BELRXEEXERRAZERZHM
EEEARREANEENBE #axm -
WA - RAXEREREDEREHES
ZHT3H o

i =5 B A 15 J0 BB R £ SRt By = TR 2
AEz-BAXZELRE ~A5EF
ENTEEREEGKRESR -WER
RSN EHEERKIZEGET
REDRRI HEIE

fisd AN 5% B 2% 5 8 — ] B BB 2 B) A 4%
- AEBEERONZMNBRRINEE
(BREEE) RAE ()T FERESA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.
Amendments to Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Aadvance Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had
no significant financial effect on the Group’s results of
operation and financial position, except for HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers as described below.

22 S BRREBRKE

G2 LA FE B RS AR R R A A
THAIREETEBH B RELER -

BEERNBRE URGINZXEH7EE
% I 257 Rit2
SHEN)

BRENBRE ZABEBEYFHREENE
% I B 457 AR IRE A EFEE
SHEN) B & ER Eo 2

BTA

EAVBRE ZHIA
% Bl ZEO5%

BERMBRE FFPEAUA
R 155,

BENBRE EEEEUBHEEAE
% I 881555 155 &P & AT A
C-HEN)

BREEN BEREREYE
F40%% (B3]
)

BE(BRME SESZREME
MEREZ
BEg)— &

12 F205%

2014F 22016 BAEWBHRELEAFE1H
FHHAF REB G LR F285
BN # (BETA)

RMZFENET MBI B BMBGREE
ASASE 2 & BXRERY BN L H#
BEAMBEE HETRBBEHBREE
AIFR 2@ TAIREEMBEHREER
F1R[FP B AW ATRIERSN
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

94

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group recognised
the transition adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 January 2018 and has not
restated comparative information. Therefore, the
comparative information for the corresponding period in
2017 which was reported under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement is not
comparable to the information presented for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has
no significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. The impact arising
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 relates to the impairment
requirements.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

22 B HEXREBHRME (&)

BEAMEBREERNFERL2HT A

BB ERELERFEN 2 A T AR2018
FIAIHS Z2 AR ZFEHEIRARS
BERTEREI 2@ T A HERRA
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DERFE  RERIAEH AEED
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BRABEAE RUESINLEER-
it BEES ST ERFEIRZH T
A HERARTEEHRZ01TFRPZ L
B RHE L A E2018F12A31H I F
B2 2 ERIEL LR - HNE B
BHRELERFRTEHESCREEND
B EELAEAVE - ERNBEEUE
s ERFOREE M E MR EH TR



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 EFTHXREHRIBE (&)

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss to be recorded
based on an expected credit loss (“ECL”) model either on
a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group has
applied the simplified approach and recorded lifetime
expected losses that are estimated based trade
receivables both on a specific and collective basis based
on management’s assessment of the recoverability of an
individual receivable. The effect of replacing HKAS 39’s

ERUBHREENFORSHT A (&)
ERVBHREEMNESTRTE BAFE
AARENEBTIARER T _EAE
ERrHEERBHEEBR(RHE
EERDEACKR AEEERBLDH
J70k - RIBE IR B B Bl & Wk 3R0R A] K
MG EXREREERBEEE
AAEZE S RWHIEN G2 R
HIEE - AE B 55 HE £ RIE5R A B
FEERR(RYUEEERDDRKEES

SHERIFEIRM F E B H % R2018%F1 A
1THRRBRENAER  ITEMKERRK
HEHEEOT :

incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9’s expected
credit losses (“ECL”) has been recognised directly in
retained profits as of 1 January 2018 and the affected
financial statement items are disclosed below:

Impairment

allowances ECL allowances
under HKAS 39 at under HKFRS 9
31 December at 1 January
Consolidated statement of financial position 2017 Remeasurement 2018
A2018F1A1H
M2017F12H31H REEBUBERE
REEESHER % B SE9%% W TR I
mEMBRR K EIHMHER B BENE FEBERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET

Assets BE
Trade receivables g 5’ WRIE 170,353 1,508 171,861

Equity &
Reserves ff# 152,394 1,508 153,902

RIBEE B & 5t 4 A F395% & Hi KB A
BEREBEEVHREERFIRET N
HEBEREESR 2 HRIANPHERER

out in note 18 to the financial statements. BsE18 o

The reconciliation of the ending impairment allowances in
accordance with HKAS 39 to the opening balance of loss
allowances determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 is set

—F\FEF BEBRERARAT 95



A AN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

96

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to
a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 5 to the financial statements. As a result
of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed
the accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date
of initial application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply
the standard to contracts that are not completed as at 1
January 2018. The impact arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as follows:

Sale of coffee and tea products with rental of
machines

The Group provides rental of machines for the sale of
coffee and tea products. If customers’ purchases of
coffee and tea products reach the agreed minimum
amount, the rental charge of machines for that month will
be waived. Such pricing arrangements are settled monthly
or quarterly and the rental of machines is bundled
together with the sale of coffee and tea products.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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201812 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and Amendments to HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Sale of coffee and tea products with rental of
machines (Continued)

The Group has assessed that the rental of coffee and tea
machines bundled together with the sale of coffee and tea
products is distinct and is considered as a separate
performance obligation in accordance with HKFRS 15.
The Group performed an allocation of transaction price
based on the relative standalone selling prices of the
coffee and tea products and rental of coffee and tea
machines. Accordingly, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the
sale of goods for the year ended 31 December 2018
decreased with a corresponding increase in the rental
income from the leasing of coffee and tea machines as
shown below:

22 ST BRREFRBE(F)

BERUMBBREENEISREFSAK
A RERMBE®REER/F155 (BFTF)
(&)

ERHEETH WG R FKE 7 #H & (&)

BEESMBHREELFISH  BEAE
B ATl 0 Ok A R 2% AR B o R R 2
ERHEEANREBELE SAEERE
HNET - AKEBRBENMBERNEREY
T8 3K (B I AR U0 Ok A R 2 M D R R
S8 Bt RME BT B RELERFE5
e 1% B E2018F12A31A L EEN E
o E R A - T A 0 T A R XA AR
LU AN R XFR

Amounts Adjustment Amounts
prepared under upon adoption prepared under
HKAS 18 of HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15
REEBE EMEBTE RESBTHK
Year ended B £2018%12A31H HREISHAE WMEXERFE15E HEERE15H
31 December 2018 LEE M &5 BRE HENESHE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FET FET
Sales of coffee, tea and related 5 & W BE « 2 M AE I EC
complementary products EEm 806,262 (19,724) 786,538
Sales of frozen meat and frozen $5%& 2 RAE K 2R E
processed food R m 262,498 = 262,498
Rental income from leasing of 8 & PNBE# K& 25 1
coffee and tea machines A 2,221 19,724 21,945
Food and beverage store BEmRkEREEE
operations 251 = 251
1,071,232 — 1,071,232
Classification of deposits received from customers EWREFESHSE

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group presented
sales deposits received from customers as deposits
received included in other payables and accruals in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 15, reclassification has been made
from deposits received to contract liabilities, which is also
included in other payables and accruals in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2018. Further details are set out in note 22 to
the financial statements.

KRB BEREERNFE1G5KF - K
SEREAVBERRAERKEWEF 2 H
ERE 27N /F AR AN FR R BT
RBZEMRE REMNBEMERE
HRFIGREKE CDRRESEEFOVEE
AR AE - EIFN2018F12831H M 47
B ISR R AT A K B A 5RR K B AT
IR - B Z B8N B 15 Mk M 522
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtalilment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,

2015-2017 Cycle

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

9 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2020

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23!

98 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CHEMERAEMNE B KR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new
and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in accounting
policies and are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial performance and financial position,
except as described below.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(FRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two elective recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to
a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease term and
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset.

HERE)

AEBEFNEERERZEN REE
RIEAYBHRELNNEE - 25 AR
BB - BRI ES  ZFHET REER]
BB RELENATEERSABRE
B AMAEHEANEE YR E &M
ARBREATE -

EEMBHRELENEIGREE
EEMBHRELNFIGRRAEFE G
ZAUNFI7THR/HEE] BE(BBRMBRE
REZES)REBRIG [ EELHEL B
SHE] BR(EBREZES RES
165G [ EHE — EFIREL (B2
BZEg)REBR2IRIFEELSHER
EBERAMKX ZRIAE ] - % ERE I
AR AtE - 2 LBEEHEZRA
YREEREABRBERBAMOEEEE
REaE ZENREEAEARREER
MMERE — EEEEECHEREH
HE -NEERKBEY  AEABREE
HAELzHENTERABE(NEESR
B UREERAERAEBEEENET
BREERNEREEE) EREEE
Hg R ANER £ Rt T & MR E
BERGE BUNERAREENEGRAS
At ERIFAE IR EMEZEE Y
REREMBEAZYE BEMRBR
ARSI - HEREBEHERGSEMAR
REEABEMNE LERELBEEMNK
migd - ZFHEABRBLEAHEREN
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Sh - EEATFARBELES T EH (Pl
HEMEs BREERKEENKE
BRFEHREGHMERNRKHEEN
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REEFAENHERESE BIAAR
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

100

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can
choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate the
comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-
of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application. The Group plans to use the
exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts
whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date
of initial application. During 2018, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated that
right-of-use assets of HK$20,771,000 and lease liabilities
of HK$20,771,000 will be recognised at 1 January 2019
with a corresponding adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

102

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSTBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EREHEHRBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) B (E)
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) ZARFTE TIEMAKEGNELRS :

conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASEBERN—SE®
same group; A= W/NI

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —EERBAR>—ERB(FHZS
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow -4 -1:0 k=SNG IZHJ%’D\ETEE
subsidiary of the other entity); EES =N 0) - AN k=

NS

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZEBEASERE %=
the same third party; RS

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —EERAEF=FEENLEE
the other entity is an associate of the third ¥ - mME—EBERAZE=F
entity; EREMNEE R

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) ZEBIOUAEESNELEER
the benefit of employees of either the Group or EEBERNEERXYZAN
an entity related to the Group; BEE 12 18 FIET &)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) FRERER()FTH A A TIEHI K
person identified in (a); HEZEH

(vi) a person identified in (a)() has significant (vii) (@WOFTHEBIALTHZERESE
influence over the entity or is a member of the jig/fgc N HBZEE (%
key management personnel of the entity (or of EBHEARMEZEETEA

Bl ‘m]$

E’J}ﬂzé-\:

a parent of the entity); and

nup

% B RS H P B R B Y (AT

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) BEHetE
it is a part, provides key management BRAIRAEEXAEEEG R
personnel services to the Group of to the FIIREEEZEEBABR -

parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSTBEME (&)

A AN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Buildings Shorter of the lease terms
or 2.2%
Plant and machinery 4% to 33.33%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSTBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customer relationship and trademark are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 7
and 10 years, respectively.

NE BERRBRITE(E)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 January 2018)” below.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSHTBEBME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement — Financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement — Financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments) (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition as
loans and receivables. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement — Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 120 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

114

(Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSTBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSHHREBRE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)”; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSHTBEBME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSTBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences while deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for
more than one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
a significant financial benefit for more than one vyear,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

(b) Leasing of coffee and tea machines
Revenue from the leasing of coffee and tea
machines is recognised over time in accordance
with the terms of respective underlying agreements
because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

24 EXETHEME(Z)

WA (H2018F1A1R #£EH)
(%)

EE&EA W (&
EANBEEREAR B YRR FIRME
REBB—FRERERIMBETHRE
MEBEAF R WEREHNFRBRIEE
WEHEREFE  WFEAFBERFR
BN REERAEERTF 2HAZE
UBMERSGTFRBM -BEAHNBEEHEMR
REHWMASEIREBAE-—FHERKX
M F =t BEANERNKERE
RBERNEEZHENBERANFE
X o %%ﬁﬁmﬁi%%%ﬁfm
REE BB A —FRUANEL
SEFEREBY B REERFE155 AT
BERE TEREABEEAKRTOH
FETIANFHE-

@ HEE@m
HEEmOWRNEENETHERE
EEPHEBEARNE mEK)
=7 o

D

(b) 76 B oo HE K K
%E‘E\%ﬂﬂiﬂ%&mﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬁlkﬂmﬂﬂﬁ
s S A 2 IRREERRERER
% P R B U2 38 FEAS SR B P iR
B F 25

—F-\FFH BRERERERD 123



A AN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

124

(©)

Sale of goods with leasing of coffee and tea
machines

The Group also provides leasing of coffee and tea
machines with the sale of coffee and tea products.
If customers’ purchases of coffee and tea products
reach the agreed minimum amount, the rental
charge of machines for that month will be waived.
Such pricing arrangements are settled monthly or
quarterly and the rental of machines is bundled
together with the sale of coffee and tea products.

The contracts for bundled sale of goods with leasing
of coffee and tea machines comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to
transfer the goods and provide leasing of coffee and
tea machines are capable of being distinct and
separately identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction
price is allocated based on the relative standalone
selling prices of the selling prices of the coffee and
tea products and rental of coffee and tea machines.
The revenue recognition of the sale of goods and
leasing of coffee and tea machines is set out above.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(c) food and beverage store operations, when the
catering services have been provided to the
customers; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimate future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carting amount of the financial assets.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received
a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is
due) from the customer. If a customer pays the
consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants to recognise their contribution to the Group.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note
27 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)
For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

128

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Company continues to operate an occupational
retirement scheme registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. This
scheme has been granted exemption pursuant to Section
5 of the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. When an
employee leaves the scheme before his/her interest in the
Company’s employer contributions vesting fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Company are
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

Since December 2000, the Group operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries. The Company’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSTBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

Contributions from these schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the schemes. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and Bye-
Laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRSTBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and leasing of machines

The Group provides leasing of coffee and tea machines
separately or bundled together with the sale of coffee and
tea products to a customer. The leasing of machines is a
promise to transfer services in the future and is a part of
the negotiated exchange between the Group and the
customer.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

ldentifying performance obligations in a bundled sale
of goods and leasing of machines (Continued)

The Group determined that both sale of coffee and tea
products and leasing of coffee and tea machines are
capable of being distinct. The fact that the Group
regularly sells coffee and tea products and leases
machines on a stand-alone basis indicates that the
customer can benefit from the goods or services on their
own. The Group also determined that the promises to
transfer coffee and tea products and to lease the coffee
and tea machines are distinct within the context of the
contract. The sale of coffee and tea products and the
leasing of coffee and tea machines are not inputs to a
combined item in the contract. The Group is not
providing a significant integration service because the
presence of the sales of coffee and tea products and the
leasing of coffee and tea machines together in the
contract does not result in any additional or combined
functionality and neither the coffee and tea products nor
the leasing of coffee and tea machines customises the
other. In addition, the sales of the coffee and tea
products and the leasing of coffee and tea machines are
not highly interdependent nor highly interrelated, because
the Group would be able to sell the coffee and tea
products even if the customer declined the leasing of
coffee and tea machines and vice versa. Consequently,
the Group allocated a portion of the transaction price to
each of the sales of coffee and tea products and the
leasing of coffee and tea machines using the adjusted
market assessment approach.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Further details are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to ageing analysis
and other specific assessments of the Company’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of
goods based on historical sales patterns and other
specific attributes, and management experience and
judgement. Based on such review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
values. Due to changes in market and economic
environment and customers’ preference, actual saleability
of goods and actual realised selling prices might be
different from the original estimation and profit or loss
could be affected by differences in this estimation.

Impairment of trade receivables

Before 1 January 2018

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates based
on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate so
that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the
basis of making the allowance and its future results would
be affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

From 1 January 2018

The provision rate of trade receivables is made based on
the assessment of their recoverability and the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables as well as other
quantitative and qualitative information and on
management’s judgement and assessment of the
forward-looking information. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future. Information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the beverage solutions (“Beverage Solutions”)
segment processes and distributes coffee, tea and
related complementary products, sells food and
beverages, coffee machines and other related
products, operates food and beverage store and
leases coffee and tea machines; and

(b)  the food products (“Food Products”) segment trades
frozen meat and frozen processed food.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that interest income, dividend
income and unallocated gains, head office and corporate
expenses as well as finance cost are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents,
balances with related parties, tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings other receipt
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

than trust loans, other

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIBER (&)
(Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ERKERE Bm &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TER TER
Year ended E Z2018%F
31 December 2018 12A31H L E
Segment revenue (Note 5) 7 Z U A (Fff &E5)
Sales to external customers HETIIBEP 808,734 262,498 1,071,232
Segment results DEHEE 121,141 9,446 130,587
Reconciliation: #HR -
Interest income A B WA 2,858
Corporate and unallocated rERRIERSZFHE
expenses, net (29,760)
Finance cost BMEKAK (6,005)
Profit before tax BR %54 510 i A1 97,680

Other segment information: Hth 5 IEH :

Depreciation and amortisation  #7& K & &4 24,861 175 25,036
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 [l g 7% 18 8L (B 7,475 24 7,499
Reversal of impairment of trade 2 5 & U 5% 18 I3 (& & [
receivables (10) (93) (103)
Write-off of trade receivables & 5 JfE Ut 2K 78 il 484 211 695
Write-down of inventories to ~ FEFRZE A # R FE
net realisable value 848 429 1,277
Write-off of inventories FE M 736 440 1,176
Capital expenditure* BEARET* 21,976 852 22,828
* The capital expenditure includes purchases of property, 2 EBARYXBOEBEEDE BELEZE
plant and equipment of HK$20,551,000 and deposits for 20,551,000 T A R BEEY % - BE K
purchases of property, plant and equipment of REIR £2,277,0007 JT ©

HK$2,277,000.

138 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFTBPER(E)
(Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
BEURRERB Bm &5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TERT
As at R20184F
31 December 2018 12A31H
Segment assets PEEE 406,006 127,018 533,024
Reconciliation: #ik
Elimination of intersegment 2 5B ) e W5k TE 1 8K
receivables (547)
Corporate and unallocated rERRIEREE
assets 329,064
Total assets EERE 861,541
Segment liabilities PEHEE 170,629 60,968 231,597
Reconciliation: #ik
Elimination of intersegment 2 BB ) M {5 SR IE 1 88
payables (547)
Corporate and unallocated tERRIEERE
liabilities 76,164
Total liabilities BELzE 307,214
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIBER (&)
(Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ERKERD R &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TAT TAT
Year ended E Z20174F
31 December 2017 12A31BIEFE
Segment revenue 2 WA
Sales to external customers HETIHIEBER 711,349 243,261 954,610
Segment results PEEE 94,378 10,650 105,028
Reconciliation: #iR
Interest income AU A 484
Corporate and unallocated rERRIERSZ FHE
expenses, net (37,213)
Finance cost BE KA (4,126)
Profit before tax BR %54 B0 i A1 64,173
Other segment information: Htb5HER :
Depreciation and amortisation — #7 & K & ¢4 24,909 30 24,939
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 [l It 71 18 5L (B 1,157 32 1,189
Reversal of impairment of trade ‘& 5 J& Y 7 18 ) (& £ [
receivables (11) (6) (17)
Write-off of trade receivables & 5 & Ut 7 18 #fl 5 348 - 348
Write-down of inventories to net 77 & s 2 A] &35 &
realisable value 628 676 1,304
Write-off of inventories 7 &M 501 = 501
Capital expenditure* BEARET* 16,633 13 16,646

* BEARTBREBREDE BERLZE
15,428,000 T AN IBEW X - BE &
&% 41,218,000 TT °

The capital expenditure includes purchases of property,
plant and equipment of HK$15,428,000 and deposits for
purchases of property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,218,000.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIBER (&)
(Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ZHRKE R R &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT TAT
As at 20174
31 December 2017 12H31H
Segment assets PTHEE 408,230 127,146 535,376
Reconciliation: #EE
Elimination of intersegment 7> 55 7 FE W5k IR 88
receivables (5,210)
Corporate and unallocated TERKRDEEE
assets 51,295
Total assets EERE 581,461
Segment liabilities THEE 168,200 67,573 235,773
Reconciliation: #E
Elimination of intersegment 7> 5B 7 FE 1<) 5K IE 1 88
payables (5,210)
Corporate and unallocated TtERKRIEEE
liabilities 118,838
Total liabilities BEETE 349,401
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

PR

N

nr

Z D MER ()

i 32 & B

(a) KESEEFEF KA

2018 2017

201845 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T THE T

Hong Kong B 739,191 697,353
Mainland China eRENp: 313,985 238,905
Macau B P 11,896 11,153
Others H 1 6,160 7,199
1,071,232 954,610

The revenue information above is based on the

FREABERTIREBEXRPAEME

locations of the customers. ) o
(b) Non-current assets (b) ¥ HEEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FH T
Hong Kong BB 62,144 62,565
Mainland China FR A 76,265 84,230
138,409 146,795

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax
assets and financial assets.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about a major customer

During the year, the Group’s revenue from sales to an
external customer, which is over 10% of the total revenue,
amounted to HK$234,823,000 (2017: HK$122,596,000).

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS, NET

4. BEHIER ()

BR—BEXEEFEFMNESR

FR - AEBM—BIINBEFPHEMFK
SRR BIB10% © #234,823,000/5 7T
(20174 : 122,596,000/87C) °

5. WARHEAMKAR KD FEE

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WARITIT :
2018 2017*
20185 20176~
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Sales of goods EmiEE 1,049,036 951,522
Rental income e A 21,945 2,729

Food and beverage store RmRkEBERIELE

operations 251 359
1,071,232 954,610

The revenue information for the year ended 31 December
2017 was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and is not
comparable with the revenue information for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The sales of goods for the
year ended 31 December 2017 included revenue from
bundled sales of coffee and tea products and rental of
coffee and tea machines. If the Group had applied HKFRS
15 beginning from 1 January 2017, sales of goods for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would have decreased by
HK$17,820,000 with the corresponding increase in rental
income by the same amount.

* HZE2017F12A318 L FEHRAE R
DHiIREES S EAFE18H KR ARR
I AEEE E2018412A31 8 IEFEH
T A B R 8 - B 220179128318 Lt
FEMEMRHE B RA M REXER
B 4R 450 45 65 LA T IO WE 4 K 54 00 TR 2 Lk
Ao HAREBER2017FE1 1B EERE
BT ISR B SE155% - B E2017412
A3EIEHFEME & & 8l E D
17,820,0007% 7t + i 8 £ Uk A 5 48 FE 12
IR R €5 -

—F-\FFH BRERERERD 143



A AN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

5.

144

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5, WARHMKARKZFEEZ)
GAINS, NET (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHKA
Disaggregated revenue information THRUAEH
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
BRKRERE Bm &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FER FET
Year ended 31 December B Z£2018%F12831H
2018 IEEE
Type of goods or service EmBREER
Sales of coffee, tea and SHEMDE - X R HE AR
other related complementary ~ BEEE @
products 786,538 - 786,538
Sales of frozen meat and HESRABERZRE
frozen processed food HE M - 262,498 262,498
Rental income from leasing of 78 W0 BF # K 25 1 /9 12
coffee and tea machines A 21,945 - 21,945
Food and beverage store RmRERIEEE
operations 251 - 251
Total revenue from contracts ~ BF A QWA &5
with customers 808,734 262,498 1,071,232
Geographical markets it & T 3%
Hong Kong BB 481,030 258,161 739,191
Mainland China A A 309,648 4,337 313,985
Macau ! 11,896 - 11,896
Others Hh 6,160 - 6,160
Total revenue from contracts BF ALK AEEHE
with customers 808,734 262,498 1,071,232
Timing of revenue B WA B
recognition
Goods transferred at a point & & 7 X i% fE] 2 7
in time 786,789 262,498 1,049,287
Services transferred over time  FRIGBEZE M E® 21,945 - 21,945
Total revenue from contracts B FEA XMW A&
with customers 808,734 262,498 1,071,232
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5, WMAREAMWARWKZFEEE)
GAINS, NET (Continued)
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: EMARKZFEIMAT :
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT TBTT
Other income, net HiW A F5E
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 2,858 60
Interest income earned from B & &R A B BREA F B Uk
the ultimate holding company A - 419
Interest income from financial EAFEFAEBEZNEREE
investment at fair value through B B A
profit or loss - 5
Others H h, 111 751
2,969 1,235
Gains, net W= FE R
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - HERFZEEB KR
property, plant and equipment, F R
net - 1,853
Foreign exchange differences, net  [&E i = % F %8 - 910
- 2,763
2,969 3,998
6. FINANCE COST 6. RENX
An analysis of finance cost is as follows: BEKADTBT
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET TBT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIE KA B 6,005 4,126
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBAER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBRB A SN DL (GEA)T
(crediting): B % T8 T E A ¢
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% TERT FHET
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 A 3 B 2,403 1,291
Cost of inventories sold" EEFERAR 698,884 630,789
Listing-related expenses FHEBRX 6,791 24,974
Depreciation” e 13 22,511 22,426
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE#®H 16 2,116 2,113
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE L AR & R 8
payments 14 409 400
Minimum lease payments under REHENRERE
operating leases E 11,756 10,976
Foreign exchange differences, net* bE 5 = 2R 970 (910)
Reversal of impairment of trade B 5 I Wk IE R E 2
receivables* 18 (103) (17)
Impairment of trade receivables* B2 RN FIBRE" 18 7,499 1,189
Write-off of trade receivables* B 5 I WK IE M 8 695 348
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE  BERZEE
property, plant and equipment* BEE/ (M)~ 484 (1,853)
Employee benefit expenses’: EERMAX":
Salaries, wages, allowances and e I8 -2UR
bonuses* fE4r! 125,109 118,181
Equity-settled share option expense BatEERERY 27 7,405 -
Pension scheme contributions (defined Rk £ s EER(RE
contribution schemes) G S 5,462 5,045
137,976 123,226
Write-down of inventories to net FEHRBRERZEFE
realisable value* 1,277 1,304
Write-off of inventories* FE " 1,176 501
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

These amounts are included in “Other income and gains,

7.

» »

net” or “Other expenses, net

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

on the face of the

" The cost of sales for the year amounted to HK$738,104,000
(2017: HK$664,996,000) and included cost of inventories

sold of HK$698,884,000 (2017: H

depreciation charge of HK$14,257,000

K$630,789,000),
(2017:

HK$13,944,000) and employee benefit expenses of

HK$14,531,000 (2017: HK$10,817,000).

u Included in salaries, wages, allowances and bonuses were

operating
HK$2,277,000 (2017: HK$2,376,000).

lease payments for staff quarters of

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

7.

%ﬁm%ﬂ@@
ZEFBHARARBRZH KA
SO EEL AR ESE TR

" & N 4 & A 2N &738,104,0007 7t (2017
F 1 664,996,000 L) - B BEEE R
B B 7698,884,000% T (20174 :
630,789,000 JT): 1 & H X
14,257,0005% 7T (20174 : 13,944,000/
7T) R B B & F F 14,531,000/ T
(20174 : 10,817,000/ 7T) °

6 FFAFE IT& EUREABETLRE

&K & E N 2,277,000/ JT (2017
£ : 2,376,000/ 7T) °
EERFTETHRAEEHMH

R £Em A A Ea” HWT’JIJ”*
(

the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the 383(1)(a) * (b ) okffEkAr]l(HKEE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the = H B R AR B L2850 A ﬁ R FANE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EEHEMOT
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAET
Fees we 600 —
Other emoluments: H it i & -
Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥ & - A8 X E W& A
in kind 9,831 7,211
Performance related bonuses 4B R S TE AL 1,360 954
Equity-settled share option mEEERERT
expense 1,979 —
Pension scheme contributions BREFHEIHR
(defined contribution schemes) (REHETED 462 343
14,232 8,508
—ENFFHE REERERERA 147
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8.

148

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the vyear, certain directors were granted share
options in respect of their services to the Group under the
share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive

8.

EERTETHRAEHM(E)

- RBAARERESE  ETEE
BB R 7 R AT AR R R AR e —
55 515 BN B 5 MR M o7 - 5 R B AR
Bz ATERBBHMARRRR B
WeENREL A BEE B ARER
MERENSELAR LAEEHHE
BE R -

(@ BAFHTEES
FAXNTBINRTESTNES

directors during the year were as follows: m
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang HMEZ LA 200 —

Mr. Chow Alexander Yue B R kA&

Nong 200 -
Mr. Wong Man Fai T EE A 200 =
600 —

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2017: Nil).

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang, Mr. Chow Alexander Yue
Nong and Mr. Wong Man Fai were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 15 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

8.

REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

Executive directors

8. EERTETHAEHME)

(b) BMTES

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
k-4 & BRGH Bike
He RENEF BAEL  BREBEX ATEMR FmaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THEx TEL TEL TR TEL
2018 20185
Mr. Wong Tat Tong HEELAE - 6,180 533 - 426 7,139
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith ~ B8 % %4 - 2,220 459 1,187 18 3,884
Ms. Fan Yee Man B g - 1,431 368 792 18 2,609
- 9,831 1,360 1,979 462 13,632
2017 20176
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEEERE = 5,081 606 = 316 6,003
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith PR % L4 = 1,722 348 = 18 2,088
Ms. Fan Yee Man* B a” = 408 = = 9 447
= 7,211 954 = 343 8,508

*

Ms. Fan Yee Man was appointed as the executive

director of the Company on 4 September 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2017: Nil).

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office (2017: Nil).

* B B/ NR 20179 4B E R
EBEERARNBNITES -

FAMBEENEXRERELM
e = HF (20174 « £B) o

TR AR E L E R EE S H M
ERMAREBERMARE B IR
5% B =X 1 /% B B A9 4 (B (20174
&)
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group included 3
(2017: 3) directors, among which, a director was
appointed on 4 September 2017. Details of the
remuneration of the five highest paid employees who are
directors are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining five highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
of the Company (including the remuneration of a director
prior to her director appointment on 4 September 2017)
are as follows:

TEEEFHMES
AREBREESFNEEBREIRES
(20174 : 3%) - AR —HEFJIR2017
FORABEZT - B AESEHNAERR T
Bl (& B A 5 BN SF 1B 8 X HIsE8 © 82 T
WHARREEXRNETETHRAENRSA
EaFiES (81 —8EER2017F9
RABBZATRESZAIMNEI) 0 F B &F
BT -

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥ & 2B R E WM F 25

in kind 1,959 2,832
Performance related bonuses 1B R TE AT 208 579
Equity-settled share option expense #& %5 4% & B8 IX 7 FA 5% 396 -

Pension scheme contributions RARSFEIER(AEHR
(defined contribution schemes) s &) 36 47
2,689 3,458

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

HMATUTHENSSHMES &
ENEETBARAB)ARDT :

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £ 1,500,0007% 7T 2 3"

A

Included the remuneration of a director of the Company
prior to her director appointment on 4 September 2017.
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10. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable in Mainland China have been calculated at the

rate of 25% (2017: 25%).

10. Fi5 %
BEERENHAIREN AEBBAE
T EEERER -

BEAFNERIOIBEFREST BRI
=1 FE 2R B 0% A EY16.5% (20174 : 16.5% )
TR P E A E R R R 2 B8 i
25% (20174 : 25% )W) R EEH -

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FH&T
Current — Hong Kong BEy — /B
Charge for the year FRAX 11,715 12,599
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBBEEE (80) (38)
Current — Mainland China BNES — R E A
Charge for the year FAZH 9,590 3,980
Underprovision/(overprovision) in BEFEBRETR/
prior years (FBRR ) 21 (59)
Deferred (note 24) i3 (Pt 5E24) (1,046) (683)
Total tax charge for the year FABEZ L BT 20,200 15,799
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10.

152

INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

10. FRB % (&)

EREBEERRFREZBRBANENZ

before tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax ERATIES L - Hi EEEERENET

charge at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

BZBRAXHZHEET

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Profit before tax B 3% B g A 97,680 64,173
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory EEBEEMEFTENRIE
tax rate 16,117 10,589
Higher tax rate applied for specific ‘5 & & 1 B8 43 sk 1 75 # B8 ) &
provinces or enacted by local BB = B
authority 3,582 1,852
Adjustments in respect of current %8 & A & Bl HA % 18 9 8 =&
tax of previous periods (59) 97)
Income not subject to tax BAFRHR KA (205) (4)
Expenses not deductible for tax EIEE A 2,076 5,218
Tax losses utilised from previous — fEABE BB MR BEEE
periods (1,700) (2,096)
Recognition of unrecognised tax HRBABENRER
losses from previous periods TRIAE 18 - (166)
Tax losses not recognised ANERMIEEE 389 503
Tax charge at the Group’s effective EAEB BRI KA E 1B
tax rate X i 20,200 15,799
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Dividends recognised as distribution & AfER A& DIk 2 K& :
during the year:
2017 interim dividend — 2017 HARRE —
HK35.08 cents per ordinary B i% 38 1% 35.0878 Il
share - 86,645
2017 special dividend — 2017TFEFFRIR B —
HK14.70 cents per ordinary TR E@R14.7078 1L
share - 36,300
2017 final dividend — 2017 RHARRE —
HK1.62 cents per ordinary A% I B RR.628 1L
share 10,000 —
2018 interim dividend — 2018F R HARRE —
HK1.31 cents per ordinary TR E @131 L
share 8,093 —
18,093 122,945
Dividend proposed after the end of ¥R&EHIKR % EH IR NS
the reporting period:
Proposed final dividend — BRAHEKRE —
HK5.78 cents (2017: HK1.62 TR E B ARS. 787
cents) per ordinary share (20174 : 1.62781l) 44,054 10,000
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 B E2018F 12 431 A L FE 2 @ KK
December 2018 has been calculated by reference to B2 ER201943A5H 2762,184,512
762,184,512 shares in issue on 5 March 2019 and is PR E TR M ETE - BERNARIBRERE
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at [ERRBFERE ERIERFAIEE -

the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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12.

154

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent of HK$75,784,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 707,571,000 in issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of HK$46,095,000 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 617,604,000 in issue and issuable
during that year as adjusted retrospectively to reflect a
share split of the Company on 4 September 2017. In
determining the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue, the share split of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 was deemed to have been
completed on 1 January 2017.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent and the total of (i) the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 707,571,000, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and (i) the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,737,000 assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all share options into ordinary shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, diluted
earnings per share equaled the basic earnings per share
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue for that year.
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B E2018F12A31B L EE BREAR
BANTDBEEBRGEBERITE ARG
i 175,784,000/ 7T X £ N B 1T E B
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R EATEE B ()FTESRE
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. B AR EBREZEEEAELER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE B (E)

PARENT (Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share HTEEREARBERFTIRE
are based on:

2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity & A Al E@AEREE AE(G
holders of the parent i Al 75,784 46,095
2018 2017
20184 20174
’000 000
F IR T &
Shares i 2
Weighted average number of AU EERERBINFA
ordinary shares in issue and B 81T R Al BT mAR i
issuable during the year, used in  FH &
the basic earnings per share
calculation 707,571 617,604
Effect of dilution — weighted ey E — TaiRmE
average number of ordinary T8
shares:
Share options E i 1,737 -
Weighted average number of AU EERESRIN LA
ordinary shares, used in the A% hn#E 19 &
diluted earnings per share
calculation 709,308 617,604
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

156

13. ME -BERKRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HELH BE HKE-BE
REF R#H RERRE RE &t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER THER TET THER
31 December 2018 2018F12H31H
At 31 December 2017 and at ~ A2017F12H318 &
1 January 2018, net of 20181418 -
accumulated depreciation NKRAHER
and impairment AE 34,969 59,416 10,443 3,193 108,021
Additions NE - 15,243 4,710 1,870 21,823
Depreciation provided for the ~ FRFHRITE
year (1,519) (15,026) (4,558) (1,408) (22,511)
Disposals & - (1,236) (116) - (1,352)
Exchange realignment I % (1,566) (1,451) (268) (19 (3,298)
At 31 December 2018, net of ~ #2018%12A318 -
accumulated depreciation B RFHER
and impairment KL 31,884 56,946 10,211 3,642 102,683
At 31 December 2018: R2018%F12A318 :
Cost N 51,385 143,213 71,372 9,191 275,161
Accumulated depreciation ZEAMERAE
and impairment (19,501) (86,267) (61,161) (5,549) (172,478)
Net carrying amount REFE 31,884 56,946 10,211 3,642 102,683

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERRXRE(E)

(Continued)
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plant and  fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
ME i BE KRB BT
REF LW RERSE AE Bt
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TET TET TET TET TET
31 December 2017 2017%12H318
At 1 January 2017: R201751 1R -
Cost X 7R 50,523 142,569 68,947 7,916 269,955
Accumulated depreciation ZFAMERAE
and impairment (16,413) (80,323) (57,390) (4700)  (158,826)
Net carrying amount REFE 34,110 62,246 11,557 3,216 111,129
At 1 January 2017, net of 20171 A8
accumulated depreciation NKEFHER
and impairment wfE 34,110 62,246 11,557 3,216 111,129
Additions NE - 12,433 3,346 992 16,771
Depreciation provided for FRFRITE
the year (1,500) (14,869) (5,016) (1,041) (22,426)
Disposals & = (2,589) (30) - (2,619)
Exchange realignment B X, 35 B 2,359 2,195 586 26 5,166
At 31 December 2017, net of  M20174F12A318 -
accumulated depreciation NBRAHER
and impairment AE 34,969 59,416 10,443 3,193 108,021
At 31 December 2017: R2017%12A318 :
Cost B9 53,370 139,227 70,946 8,306 271,849
Accumulated depreciation BEAMERAE
and impairment (18,401) (79,811) (60,503) (5,113)  (163,828)
Net carrying amount REFE 34,969 59,416 10,443 3,193 108,021
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

13.

14.

158

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s
leasehold land and building were two warehouses of
HK$16,000, for which the Group was not able to obtain
the corresponding real estate ownership certificate. The
two warehouses were fully depreciated during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s buildings
with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,861,000 were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group and the ultimate holding
company (note 23). Such pledges were fully released
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

13. ¥ WMERKRE(E)

MR2017612H31H - A S B HEE L i
MEFEIEMME16,0008 THARE @ A
SEREMSZEEENEBELEFR
BEHEE - B E2018F12A31H L F & -
MEAED 2HREE -

20176128318 - A5 B & THR®EF
{6 #3,861,0008 T IEFEEHE R - 1
AEREBRERIERAGER —RIRTT
BB ER(HE23) - EHEEREE
2018F12H31 B I F & = 8k o

14. EAF T HBAELSK

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Carrying amount at 1 January M A1EMEREE 12,346 11,813

Amortised during the year SN 3 (409) (400)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B (624) 933
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31H M ERE & 11,313 12,346

Less: Current portion B BNEREE 9 (393) (415)
Non-current portion FEBNEREB 10,920 11,931
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B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

14.

15.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
(Continued)

Included in the Group’s prepaid land lease is a piece of
leasehold land (the “Leasehold Land”) situated in Mainland
China under collective-owned land ownership (£ & £ i
/) with a carrying value of HK$3,746,000 (2017:
HK$4,088,000). The Group also had items of property,
plant and equipment attached to the Leasehold Land (the
“Attached Properties”) amounting to HK$3,262,000 (2017:
HK$3,560,000). The Attached Properties, for which the
Group was authorised to obtain the real estate ownership
certificates, are mainly served as staff quarters of the
Group. To facilitate the Group’s future development plan,
the Group decided to apply to the relevant Mainland
China authorities to change the ownership type of the
Leasehold Land from collective-owned land ownership to
state-owned land ownership (B 7%& L #b{F A). In the prior
years, the Group commenced the necessary procedures
to change the ownership type of the Leasehold Land in
accordance with the Mainland China regulations and
returned the land use right certificate for the collective-
owned land ownership to the Mainland China
government.

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Group continues to use the Leasehold Land and the
Attached Properties without objection from relevant
authorities. In the opinion of directors, having considered
the legal advice from the Group’s PRC legal advisors, the
risk of having to relocate the Group’s operation from the
Leasehold Land is considered to be relatively low.

14 ENTHwBEENKGE)

AEBMENSLHHAERE —BLARF
BHAIT ASE LI HEREAFENHE
Er-((HELH]) HETHWHERER
& /3,746,000 7T (20174 : 4,088,000
BIL) c AEETNFHAENTEREE L
M- -BELRZEBEER ((MEMWEDR
£13,262,0007% 7T (20174 : 3,560,000/
) oMY E(AEE D EEEURE
EHEMEER) T ERELASBEMNET
B RREASENRKERE -
N ERE [ A 8 R B A b AT i 8 R
FREE T MM EEENBERE T
FANARAELMER RBEFE -
AEECDHRNEBEHE LA A LT
EHREAERERALEORESY LM
FREAMBTRESS T ERN LT
ERAER -

BEHRAEVERXAY AEBEER
REELTH RN SYE MARKEL
BERE BEERERAKETBEARE
FMEEREBRRRAS AEEEAEHE
THERLENRBRER/BHBRE-

GOODWILL 15. B8
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Cost and net carrying amount at 1818 k12A31H KA &
1 January and 31 December REE 15,447 15,447
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

15.

160

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill arose from the Group’s acquisition of the frozen
food business in Hong Kong. Goodwill acquired through
business combinations is allocated to the trading of
frozen foods cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the trading of frozen foods
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a three-year period (2017:
three-year period) The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was
15.0% (2017: 15.0%). The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the industrial products unit
beyond the three-year period was 1.5% (2017: 1.5%)
which was the same as the long term average growth
rate of the trading of frozen foods market.

approved by management.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the trading of frozen foods cash-generating unit for 31
December 2018 and 2017. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
changes in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the relevant cash
generating unit’s carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

Customer
Trademark relationship Total
[ BEBE a5t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEIT FET TABT
31 December 2018 2018%F12H31H
Cost at 31 December 2017 and #2017F12A831H &
at 1 January 2018, net of 20181 A1H H
accumulated amortisation B - 0Bk R 5T 5 687 4,333 5,020
Amortisation provided during & R &t IR 8
the year (116) (2,000) (2,116)
Exchange realignment & 5B (31) - (31)
At 31 December 2018 MN2018F12H31H 540 2,333 2,873
At 31 December 2018: M2018%12A31H :
Cost X AR 1,116 14,000 15,116
Accumulated amortisation B R E (576) (11,667) (12,243)
Net carrying amount FHEFE 540 2,333 2,873
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of H201741 A1H KK
accumulated amortisation A Ik BT 745 6,333 7,078
Amortisation provided during & R aH12 # 8
the year (113) (2,000) (2,113)
Exchange realignment BEE 3, o B 58 = 55
At 31 December 2017 MN2017F12A31H 687 4,333 5,020
At 31 December 2017: 20174128318 :
Cost BN 1,176 14,000 15,176
Accumulated amortisation e (489) (9,667) (10,156)
Net carrying amount REFE 687 4,333 5,020
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

17.

18.

162

INVENTORIES 17. & &
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FETT
Raw materials JR #4 F 71,009 79,024
Work-in-progress & m 533 749
Finished goods 2B i 134,253 115,597
205,795 195,370
TRADE RECEIVABLES EZEWFRIE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables g 5 W R IE 173,660 174,571
Impairment B E (9,812) (4,218)
163,848 170,353

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where the Group
normally trades in cash on delivery. The credit periods
generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control team to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

18. EZ EEWFE (&)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the EORWRIEZRR DT (REZABL
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: MR EEBEETE) IOT :
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30K A 104,818 101,908
31 to 60 days 31E260K 39,125 40,149
61 to 90 days 61290k 11,414 15,058
91 to 120 days 912120k 6,570 7,282
121 to 180 days 1212180k 1,012 4,227
181 to 360 days 181 £ 360K 880 1,649
Over 360 days it #3360~ 29 80
163,848 170,353
The movements in the allowance for impairment of trade BSRWRBRBEZBEEZHDOT -
receivables are as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year R E A 4,218 2,954
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 KNE BB EEDFHR L

(Note 2.2) =& (fi5x2.2) (1,508) —
At the beginning of the year RE (EEF)

(restated) 2,710 2,954
Impairment losses recognised R EEE (H:E7)

(note 7) 7,499 1,189
Impairment losses reversed (note 7) #[El58 {8 &548 (M 5£7) (103) (17)
Exchange realignment bE H, 75 & (294) 92
At the end of the year RER 9,812 4,218

—F\FEH RRERERERAT 163



A AN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended

31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer
type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. During the vyear, the
expected loss rate for certain customers that were credit-
impaired were assessed specifically by management. For
other trade receivables aged more than one year past due
but not credit-impaired, management has not observed
objective evidence of financial difficulties of the debtors
and has been taking credit risk mitigating measures. Set
out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

18. EZ EEWFE (&)

EAMKREERFRIET H ZE2018
F12A31H L FE 2R E

REREBHHFERABEEMEETRE
DM LFTEEHREEESE - BHEXDHE
RERESEUBEEANZEARFS
BT oM (AR DR R EFEER) M
BN BABAEE R ERBREAE
MELER EX¥RERRFSABAST
WMERBASZE  ERBGFRRREHE
BHEANEERATSEER - FR BT
REMBEHEEX(EFEREBE)VRE
BERANTH REaBBR-FEAER
CERENEMCEZRKZE EBE
VTARBRINERBEBEEEBEHSARN
BREMEDEEFERKE EHALE
EXAREEETENE S EKRFIED
EERBREREINNT :

Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit loss
HHREEBEER RE#AE BHRGEEESR
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER
2018 20184

Credit impaired receivables EERERKZRIE 100.00% 9,094 9,094

Other trade receivables aged:  H b & 5 fE W7 A

Z R

Within 30 days 30K A 0.02% 159,110 31
31 to 60 days 31E60K 0.60% 2,495 15
61 to 90 days 61£90K 0.66% 988 7
91 to 120 days 91 E120K 0.74% 246 2
121 to 180 days 1212180k 2.29% 189 4
181 days to 360 days 1812360K 23.11% 668 154
Over 360 days 8 3B360K 58.01% 870 505
173,660 9,812
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
31 December 2017
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables, which was measures based on incurred
credit losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 December 2017
was a provision for individually and collectively impaired
trade receivables of HK$4,218,000 with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$15,246,000. The individually
impaired trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
none or only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 that were not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

18. EZEWRKIE (£&)
BB ERE395FIE T H E2017F
12A31B L FE 2R E
L8 5 IR (ER2017F12A31H
BEACHELNFFRETELENEES
BrREEER HRERERERER R
HEREE 5 FE W 584,218,000 Tt 1E
PTHBEE EFEBEAINEEAESR
15,246,000/ Jt ° R2017F12A31H B
TEE R E 2 B 5 FE YL 30 1E B2 B8 7 B IR
RECEFEH HUHHEXEERD
& Y2 ZR T8 AT LA Yz 3] o

R2017512A318 @ R IEF B € £ 8|
FEI0F A E MBI IR E LR R ABREN
ZHEWFBEBRNERRDTOT

2017
20174
HK$’000
FAT

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 30 days past due

B #2780 2 7 R ORU(E
B H A B30K

145,629
13,796

159,325

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that had a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company were of the
opinion that no provision for impairment under HKAS 39
was necessary in respect of these balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

BE 48780 A TR R (B 00 B 5 B W R IR TS
REZTIENEFPER REETHY
AR ©

ERHMERRENE ZRKKATEE
TEIEFEAR ZEFEFPEAEHAE
KOERBLHRT REBERLR A2
AEEARUTERLEZTERESR S
Gt ERIEIRAE L R E R E - B &
EEPHNEEEEYEERESY MK
BB ARAZ UM o
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

19.

20.

166

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. AfYRE - R R HME KK IE
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Deposits bigeia 2,780 3,862
Prepayments TE T R IB 18,644 17,891
Other receivables o pE W3k IR 1,972 1,748
23,396 23,501
Less: Non-current portion B JEBNERER o (3,819) (3,616)
Current portion BN HA &6 & 19,577 19,885
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. P EESESBAIORE 7t A L4
The financial assets included in the above balances relate BONERMEER DY ERE R LHENE
to deposits and receivables for which there was no recent e REWHIERH -
history of default.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERBESEEY
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Cash and bank balances e RIRTT 45 8 328,684 45,613

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$55,801,000 (2017: HK$13,660,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

21.

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERRSEEY (&)
(Continued)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITREBREBEERRITTRFERIRZ R
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are BEFE - RITER DI TR EEBRT
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history oo BR G #E 3E A) RE Sk MU SR 1T ©
of default.
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21. EFENAREREAFARE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables Z 5 B FIE 89,398 90,318
Bills payable FE 1 E 1,842 1,306
91,240 91,624

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables based
on the invoice date is as follows:

B RMNRANENRE Rk DT (%
ZEAMWLT

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T FET

Within 1 month 118 A N 89,118 85,996
1 to 2 months 12216 A 1,050 3,593
2 to 3 months 2Z231E A 62 420
Over 3 months B 3E31E A 1,010 1,615
91,240 91,624

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 30 to 60 days. The bills payable
have a maturity period of 120 days.

BHRNRALSRE K —RNI0EOKX
WA - BN REZHHR /120K -
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22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

168

22. BErREREMWEN KR

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & TER FEL
Accruals FE 5t 3B 42,001 49,387
Receipts in advance B R IE - 2,676
Contract liabilities EHAE (@) 755 —
Other payables H fth & 1 5/ I8 (b) 7,148 7,124
49,904 59,187
Notes: Bt 7
(@)  Contract liabilities represent advance payments received (a BHEBRENRAEERMNRERMMAE
from customers from the Beverage Solutions segment for R BARFS » H R R P U TR 5RIE -
the Group’s delivery of tea products. The decrease in the EHNBEBIEZEHRFRARINRE
contract liabilities is mainly attributed to the delivery of the m °
tea products during the year.
The amount of revenue to be recognised in the current BRI EHEEEROKASEGFA
reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities wEHY(2018F1A1R)ME LA R)
at the beginning of the reporting period (1 January 2018) 52,676,000/ Tt °
was HK$2,676,000.
Movements in receipts in advance/contract liabilities during FABNRIE/ AHNEENEBHOT :
the year are as follows:
2018
20184
HK$’000
FET
At the beginning of the year R E A 2,676
Additions = 2,609
Revenue recognised during the year F Y RER WA (4,530)
At the end of the year RER 755
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31 December 2018
201812 A31H

22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22.
(Continued)

Pt RIE R E b B FRIE (47

Notes: (Continued) Bt sE - (48

(a)  (Continued) (a (&
The transaction prices allocated to remaining performance PEEHTREOEETNRZE RIS
obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which is IBARZMN ARG ERTEIRER —
expected to be recognised within one year as at 31 F N B R R2018F12A318 &

December 2018 amounted to HK$755,000. 755,000/ TT ©

HMENRELTFE - FHHRRAS=
8 A e

T ERITHER

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an (b)
average term of three months.

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 23.

2018 2017
20185 20174
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
B A E(%) AHA THET EBRE%) ZH A THEL
Current Bp &3
Trust receipt loans EEREER
— unsecured — EEA 2.85-3.87 2019 81,603 2.06-3.80 2018 84,245
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — BB On demand On demand
2.85-2.90 REX 49,400 2.06-2.56 BREk 38,000
Current portion of long term RERTERNS
bank loans — unsecured By — EEH 3.10 2019 8,000 2.31-3.06 2018 11,355
Current portion of long term RERTERNG
bank loans — secured BH — BHEA - - - 2.96 2018 5,200
139,003 138,800
Non-current FEEDHR
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — BEA 3.10 2020-2021 17,217 2.31-3.06 2019-2021 36,292
Bank loans — secured BITER — BEA - - - 2.96 2019-2021 16,467
17,217 52,759
156,220 191,559
—EF)FFHR BREEERERAR 169



A AN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 ¥R = M 5 (48

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 23.

170

it BRITER(E)

(Continued)
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FHET
Analysed into: DT
Within one year —F R 139,003 138,800
In the second year REZF 8,000 16,668
In the third to fifth years, REZZFRF
inclusive (BREEEMT) 9,217 36,091
156,220 191,559

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s
banking facilities were secured by the pledge of
certain of the Group’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of HK$3,861,000 (note 13). Such pledges
were fully released during the year ended 31
December 2018.

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s bank
borrowings were guaranteed by Mr. Wong Tat Tong
up to an aggregate guarantee amount of
HK$155,333,000. Such guarantee was fully released
on the Listing Date.
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MR2017512H318 - XEEH TR
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24. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

24, EERE

EXEHHEBBEREERFALZ

EHMT -

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustment
in excess arising from
of related acquisition
depreciation of a business Total
FERBE WBEBELEND
BREETE DNEERE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT FTAT FTAT
At 1 January 2017 201741 A1H 4,008 1,045 5,053
Deferred tax credited to the RERNFTAGEEREK
consolidated statement of ZEERTE (FT5E10)
profit or loss during the year
(note 10) (41) (330) (371)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017412A318 K&
at 1 January 2018 72018F1 A1H 3,967 715 4,682
Deferred tax charged/(credited) R E A%,/ (5t N\) &
to the consolidated EHEERZEERE
statement of profit or loss (BFzE10)
during the year (note 10) 1,470 (330) 1,140
Exchange realignment B X 38 & (51) - (51)
At 31 December 2018 R20186E12 4318 5,386 385 5,771
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201812 A31H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24, EERIE (FF)
Deferred tax assets EEHEBEEE

At 1 January 2017 W2017E1A18 14 352 - - 366
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to ~ RAER (5 %) /3 A
the consolidated statement of ARaRELER

profit or loss during the year 18 (W #10)

(note 10) m (336) 166 486 312
At 31 December 2017 and R2017512A318 Rk

at 1 January 2018 #2018F1 1R 10 16 166 486 678

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to ~ RER (BIX), /3 Ak
the consolidated statement of ARaRELER

profit or loss during the year 18 (Ft710)

(note 10) @) 2,153 (166) 201 2,186
Exchange realignment B 5 A - (81) - - 81)
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31A 8 2,088 - 687 2,783
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24, EERIE(E)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

RENME HETEERBEEENRAR
ERMBMRAKRAEE - LM B HRE M
FOASEMBRERBEABONAT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net deferred tax liabilities &R & B B AR M R FE SR A 4R AT
recognised in the consolidated MIBEEFE
statement of financial position 5,771 4,682
Net deferred tax assets recognised 4R & B 75 AR Mt 5% 1 58 /9 3 iE
in the consolidated statement of MIBEE TR
financial position (2,783) (678)
2,988 4,004

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$27,842,000 (2017: HK$27,290,000), subject
to the agreement by relevant tax authorities, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. As at
31 December 2018, the Group has fully utilised tax losses
arising in Mainland China (2017: HK$4,631,000), which
were subject to agreement by relevant tax authorities, that
will expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

—F-N\FFH BRERERERQF

AEBRBEBELENAERTBEEER
27,842,000 7T (20174 : 27,290,000/
TE(EKHEBEREKEARZ %50 E
E) AJERARBERELREER AR
Z R KFERB & F o R20185F12 31
H AEEEREHARPHANMESE
# B¢ TE &5 18 (20174 : 4,631,000/ 70 ) (B
KRBTSR ZRGEAIEER) B
RAFAE®R TANKEHREBEZ
NAIZRRERBREF o

HRELEHBABENKBARC EE—
BB - EE R DS A AT A DA K S B
BEANEERAB /T AR ERZ
EERBEABRCHREE -
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24.

25.

174

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the Mainland China Corporate Income Tax
Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts
of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised amounted to
approximately HK$62,019,000 and HK$37,277,000 at 31
December 2018 and 2017, respectively.

24, EEFIE (&)

BEFREAEAOCEERBRE) - £
Bl N S KIS IR E R E RN IR E
EZEIRHREABUI0%HTBINF - %8
E H2008F1H1H #8 & & I A K
2007F12H31B &M B A - HINFIRE
EMBR A EEEPBE AN A BB B
E o OAJREEARENENHRE - AEER
BAMER/I10% - At - "EBARZE
R B A K 7 B9 BT B A B 3200841 A
1RREENRFFDIRDNREHMNTETD
o

20184 K&2017F12 8318 » #f & 5t &
& B R AR B A Bk 37 B BT B R B 7B B AR
TR A R E E R A e B
BRELEHIB -EFZTRA - ZZWEBRF
RA] AR KRAEDIRZZEAT - R
2018%F 2017 12A31H X R EH A
B BB A R B I% B B A i I BL UL TR
EEHBEENEREEZERB 3L
462,019,000/ 7T % 37,277,000/ T °

SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Authorised: VERE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of  2,000,000,0000% & % H (&
HK$0.10 each 0.1078 T & 3@ A% 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETEER
762,071,112 (31 December 2017: 762,071,112/% (20174
617,750,000) ordinary shares of 12A31H : 617,750,0008%)
HK$0.10 each &R E0.107%8 T ) & A% 76,207 61,775
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s authorised

25. R (4Z)
ARAFMEERDRITRAEEH S 0

and issued share capital is as follows: ™
Number of Share
shares capital
B4 E & 2=
Notes HK$'000
B & FTAT
Authorised: ETE ¢
At 1 January 2017 — ordinary R2017F1A18 — K
shares of HK$0.25 each [ 60.257% 7T 1) & 18 A% 400,000,000 100,000
Share split B1D 57 (b) 600,000,000 -
Increase in authorised share VA T B AR A
capital ©) 1,000,000,000 100,000
At 31 December 2017, at 201712 A318 « i
1 January 2018 and at 201891 A18 k12018
31 December 2018 — ordinary F12A318 — &K@
shares of HK$0.10 each B0.10/8 JTo A & A A% 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETERHR
At 1 January 2017 — ordinary W2017F1 18 — K&
share of HK$0.25 each [ 60.257% 7T /) & 18 A% 247,013,281 61,753
Issue of new ordinary shares of BT HRME(E0.25/% T HY
HK$0.25 each MEAER (@) 86,719 22
Share split e (b) 370,650,000 —
At 31 December 2017 and 20176128318 &
1 January 2018 — ordinary 2018F1A1H — &K
shares of HK$0.10 each H{50.10/8 T H) & 38 AR 617,750,000 61,775
Issue of shares under initial public 1B 18 & X A 52 & 317
offering ) (d) 142,109,312 14,211
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1710 BB AR 4 g B AT iR 9
share options (e) 2,211,800 221
At 31 December 2018 — ordinary ~ 72018%F12A31H — &K
shares of HK$0.10 each M {E0.1078 JT i & 38 X 762,071,112 76,207
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

176

(@)

On 4 September 2017, 86,719 ordinary shares of par value
HK$0.25 each were allotted and issued to the then sole
shareholder for a cash consideration of HK$21,680,
thereby increasing the issued ordinary shares of the
Company from 247,013,281 shares to 247,100,000 shares
of par value HK$0.25 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole shareholder
dated 4 September 2017, every two issued and unissued
ordinary shares of par value HK$0.25 each of the
Company were subdivided into five ordinary shares of par
value HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole shareholder
dated 4 September 2017, the authorised share capital of
the Company increased from HK$100,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.10 each to
HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of par
value HK$0.10 each, by creation of 1,000,000,000 new
shares of par value HK$0.10 each.

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering,
106,229,312 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each
were issued at a price of HK$1.98 per share for a total
cash consideration, before share issue expenses, of
approximately HK$210,334,000. Dealing in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange commenced on the Listing Date.

On 8 June 2018, the Company issued additional
35,880,000 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each at
the price of HK$1.98 per share for a total cash
consideration, before share
approximately HK$71,042,000 as a result of exercise of
over-allotment options by the underwriters.

issue expenses, of
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25. RA (&)

i 3

(a)

201749548 - 86,7198% & A% m &
0258 T ERIE A ERFHKE R
fid 2% K 317 - IR & K (E /21,6808 T -
At ARARWMEHETERRKRMH
247,013,281 % 3% N Z=247,100,0004%
B T {B0.257 JT H AR 1D o

RIE & BRI — AR R R2017F9 A4 H @
BRNEMAZRE  SMBRARRSRE
BEO25B T E BT RABRITEARE
A AR R SRR EE0.10/ LY E Ak o

RIE & BRI — AR R R2017F9 A4 H @
wHEERZR BB ER
1,000,000,0000% & % [ {50.10/% T &) 7
B fn - 2N \EE AR 2N B1100,000,0007
7T 5 /A1,000,000,0004% & f% M {H0.105%
JC B B {7 15 A0 =200,000,0007 T 7 A&
2,000,000,000% & A% FE E0.107% 7T B9 A%

{/\ ®

MARABDEXRAHEEm =
106,229,312/ & iR E {8 £0.108 T H) &
BARIE T AX1.988 TR E K 31T - WAL
RESREBEBRRMDETHAZA)
#9210,334,000/ 7T © B2 o B _E T B Bi R
EHIMABER -

R2018F688H @ AN B EITF B
e B4 - AN A F) 32 B A% 1.9878 Tt HY (B 1K
%4 4N 3% 7735,880,0004% & % m (& 4A0.10
BT ERK YRR SNREATE
(30 Bk A% 17 2 77 B 2 A1) 971,042,000
—
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(e

During the vyear, the subscriptions rights attaching to
2,211,800 share options were exercised at the
subscriptions price of HK$0.594 per share, resulting in the
issue of 2,211,800 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$1,313,000. An amount of HK$4,147,000
was transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options issued under the scheme are included in
note 27 to the financial statements.

26. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

83.

(a)

(b)

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to the written resolution of the then sole
shareholder of the Company dated 25 August 2017,
the Company reallocated its share premium account
to the contributed surplus by way of reduction of the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account to nil and transfer of the credit
amount arising from the share premium reduction to
the contributed surplus.

Statutory reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant Mainland China rules and
regulations, the subsidiaries which are domestic
enterprises in Mainland China are required to
transfer no less than 10% of their profits after
taxation, as determined under Mainland China
accounting regulations and their respective articles of
association, to the reserve funds until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before the
dividend distribution to shareholders.

25. R (&)
B s ¢ (4%)

(e)

A - 2,211,80017 F A% 42 BE M A 32 08 42
BB R0.5948 T RIEEITE LA
#%172,211,8000% & i% I {8 A£0.107% 7T /Y
TR WIGEReRERLE (IR
S A1) 1,313,000/ 7T ° 1T iE fx #E 1% -
4,147,000 TERBRIEFGEEBEEZR
MaERR - ARFERETSNFBE R
RIBFTEIE BT B R ED S A M5 R
KM 27 o

26. &
AEBUANBEERENEENEERE
RESHNEBEN A RESEHES

ol

(a)

(b)

—F-N\FFH BRERERERQF

ARt

BEA QA HE M —RER20174F
SH2SHBMAMEERER - ARA]
BEBROZERETIRZBAR
B FRAABRMDEER22IE
REFARBRES  WHEEEIRBRHD
BEMEEACERSEEREAA
B o

EEAES

RIZ B A B BRI R R B - 1
RTPERMAELCENME LA
ARBETEAMETERRERR
ERAA - REERENDRI0%H R
MEBNIARERIES  BER
AR ED EMEARNE0% ° Lt
e 2 RBAERBIR 2 KR EA
#EIT -
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26. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
share capital when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the

related options expire or be forfeited.

(d) Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
currency exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations.

(e) Other reserve

The Group’s other reserve represents the difference
between the amounts by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid to acquire an additional interest

in a subsidiary.

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
similar to the terms of the Share Option Scheme except
that () no further options could be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing Date;
and (ii) the exercise price and the exercise period of the

share options are different as further detailed below.
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the

B 5N (E)

ZEFENABERSEEBEARRH

27.

Company’s executive directors and other employees of
the Group. The Schemes were approved and adopted on
15 December 2017 (“Adoption Date”). The Share Option
Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from the Listing Date.

The Company has granted options to subscribe for
9,000,000 shares of the Company under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the Listing
Date. The maximum number of shares issued and
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates would result in the total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company.

—F-N\FFH BRERERERQF

TEERASEEHMES - ZFTER
201712158 ([N BB E# E R
R4 o B BTSSRI AN » BERRRERT 2l
ERHE A E BB AH10F -

AR A BRI B R R BB A B R
i 7] 32 f#%9,000,0008% A& 17 &Y i Ak 4 -

RREREBRESIIREORTERE
BEETERMSEOBROEE &%
HERARAR EHHBAEETRMH
10% - R1Ef[121E A BEREBERED
HTANETTEBREFINERSER
S2EENENEE REITBEEAR
A PMEAAT B R 2 1T IR0 B91% © (BT
—IREBHERRENERERRK
RAE LSRR E -

AARBESE THRARITEZRRN
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27.

180

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Share Option Scheme

The offer of a grant of share option under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 7 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme is
determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options. The exercise price of share options under
the Share Option Scheme is determinable by the
directors, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer of the share options, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

Since the Adoption Date and up to 31 December 2018,
no options have been grated or agreed to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is HK$0.594 per share and the
share options are exercisable commencing on the day
faling on the Listing Date and ending on the day
immediately before the third anniversary of the Listing
Date.
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 27. R (&
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRALAHBREABRENE(E)
The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share FRN-BREBEEAARESHBRESTE
Option Scheme were outstanding during the year: ERLEHRITENEREDT
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
hn &

FEIgITEE EBREHE
HK$ per share
BRET

At 1 January 2017, at 31 December F2017%F181H « R20174F

2017 and at 1 January 2018 12H31H & R2018%1 H1H = =
Granted during the year RERE 5 0.594 9,000,000
Exercised during the year REFERNITE 0.594 (2,211,800)
Forfeited during the year R E RE K 0.594 (595,600)
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H 0.594 6,192,600
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise R & Z2018F12A31H LFE ' BT E
for share options exercised for the year ended 31 BEBRERTEAPNNETFHIREASAS
December 2018 was HK$1.82 per share. f%1.82% 7t °
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27.

182

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme granted to the Company’s executive directors
and other employees of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set below:

27. R {F (&
BRAHBEENBRETE(E)
2018F12A31H T AR R HITE
ERASEEEMEENERARAEER
BRETENFBHINDAT

Granted Exercised Forfeited Balance as at
Exercise during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant price the year the year the year 2018  Exercise period
120185
ARA REAH %@ EREY ERTR FRRM 12B31ALH EH
Executive directors
HiTES
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 412,800 412,800 - — 11 May 2018 to 10 May 2019
BRELE 2018F4A19A 05947 T 2018F5A118 £2019%5 7108
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 412,800 - - 412,800 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
201845198 059478 1T 2019F58 113 £2020F5510H
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 550,400 - - 550,400 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
2018%F4F19H 059478 1T 2020F5R 110 £2021F5510H
Ms. Fan Yee Man 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 275,400 275,400 - — 11 May 2018 to 10 May 2019
Beg e 2018F4A19A 05947 T 2018F5A118 £2019%5 7108
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 275,400 - - 275400 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
2018%F4F19H 059478 1T 2019F58 113 £2020F5510H
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 367,200 - - 367,200 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
2018%F4F19H 059478 1T 2020F5R 110 £2021F5510H
Other employees 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 2,011,800 1,523,600 83,200 405,000 11 May 2018 to 10 May 2019
HitEE 2018F4A19A 05947 T 2018F5A118 £2019%57108
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 2,011,800 - 219,600 1,792,200 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
2018%F4F19H 059478 1T 2019F58 113 £2020F5510H
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 2,682,400 - 292,800 2,389,600 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021

2018%F4F 198 05945 T

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2018 was HK$11,406,000
(HK$1.344 each), of which the Group recognised an
equity-settled share option expense of HK$7,405,000
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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27. RN (&

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2018 was estimated as at the date
of grant using a binomial model, which was subject to a
number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation
of the model, and taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
inputs to the model used included (i) dividend yield of
2.5%; (ii) expected volatility of 32.69% to 40.18%; and (iii)
risk-free interest rate of 1.56% to 2.04%. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessary be the actual outcome. No other feature of the
options granted was incorporated into the measurement
of fair value.

The 2,211,800 share options exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2018 resulted in the issue of
2,211,800 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10
each and new share capital of HK$221,000 and share
premium of HK$4,147,000, as further detailed in note 25
to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 6,192,600
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 6,192,600
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$619,000 and share premium of
HK$11,296,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 6,023,400 share options outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.78% of the Company’s enlarged share
capital.

BRALAHBEENBREE(E)

B ZE2018F 128318 L FE - BIEH X
ANABERNBRETS RO URES
ERERENAFEITRELE AU
BARX (REEFETERERBEHAER
B RIR) I 48 E R B IR A o0 I 3k R 1§
HELGEF - RXMANE ASIE2E
(K B R2.5% : (i)f8 8 & 1832.69% =
4018%  K(i)E R B F E1.56%=
2.04% o T8 B R 8 f= B 38 13 R 08 3R R R 2R
BENBR  TARLREBRER FTEAQ
FEETEMACDK LT BRENEME
=

& E2018F12A318 It F E » 17 &
2,211,80017 & % # %8 B 3% 172,211,8008%
EREECIOE T A NG ZER - WE
4 F B A221,0008 T K& D % B
4,147,000/ 7T (40 8F 75 3% 3% M9 7E 25 A 3 —

M2018F12A31H AR AR EBE XA
2 & B #E IR i 51 21 B56,192,60017 B8 %
ERETE - BEARRNRITERE
B 2ETERNRTENEREEER
KA N85 176,192,6000% A A 7] E @A% - I
B8 S EE A4 IR AN619,000% 7T & A% 19 3% 1B
11,296,000/ 7T (RET#ETHAX) -

AR ELEHBEHREBE  AQFR
B X 2B EERETEE
6,023,40017 BB AR BE M) R 1T - HE R A
N A HE R IR AN 490.78% o
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 28. MEEARFERERNIEZER
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING B2A
INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non- BEERFEEREZNASENE R A
controlling interests are set out below: MEFBWT :
2018 2017
20184 20174

Percentage of equity interest held  JEIFRRERIFERRIET DIt -
by non-controlling interests:

Whole Sun Limited EHE S BRA A 40% 40%
2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHB T T3 T

Profit for the year allocated to non- DI EIEERERNFE R F
controlling interests:

Whole Sun Limited EHESERRAA 1,696 2,279
Accumulated balances of non- R RN RS B

controlling interests at the REtEH

reporting dates:
Whole Sun Limited EE SHER AR 17,819 17,891
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 28. BEERFEREZNIEZEM
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BAR (&)
INTERESTS (Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TREVEFESBR QAN BER
information of Whole Sun Limited. The amounts disclosed BME -FIEBE2BHIRELEMAA
are before any inter-company eliminations: BEEEE
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FERT FET
Revenue A 240,160 226,451
Total expenses, other gains and FMxEE AEMlakBEFE
losses, net (235,920) (220,754)
Profit for the year and total FERMERFEZE N =BT
comprehensive income for
the year 4,240 5,697
Dividends ) (4,420) (3,105)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KEFEHARE /(AR S
operating activities mEF R 2,292 (1,234)
Net cash flows used in investing HEGHFMABE S REFHE
activities (850) (12)
Net cash flows (used in)/from WMEEE(FTA) RS
financing activities mE R (3,746) 1,831

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and B& MBEFEWCR L),/

cash equivalents 3 HNF 5 (2,304) 585
Current assets MENE E 99,687 102,170
Non-current assets EMBEE 3,063 4,386
Current liabilities mEEE (57,740) 61,115)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (464) (715)
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29.

30.

186

ACQUISITION OF A NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST

On 10 January 2017, the Group acquired a 20% equity
interest in TWG Heritage, thereby increasing its ownership
interest from 80% to 100%, a consideration of
US$124,753 (approximately HK$973,000). TWG Heritage
is an investment holding company which owns a 100%
equity interest in Dongguan TWG Heritage Food Co Ltd.,
a company established in the PRC primarily involved in
the processing of tea products. The carrying amount of
the non-controlling interest in TWG Heritage at the date of
acquisition was HK$1,191,000. The Group recognised a
decrease in the non-controlling interest of HK$1,191,000
and an increase in equity attributable to owners of the
parent of HK$218,000.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
amounts due from related companies of
HK$10,485,000 were settled through current
account with the ultimate holding company.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
interest income earned from the ultimate
holding company amounting to HK$419,000
was settled through current account with the
ultimate holding company.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
interim dividend totalling HK$86,645,000 was
set off against the loans to the ultimate holding
company and the amount due from the
ultimate holding company.
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20171 H10B - & & B I BETWG
Heritage B120% i 1 * N B W FT B =
i H80%3& SN £100% * X 18 &124,753
3 7T (#9973,000/ 7T) ° TWG Heritage & —
zmxﬁ? KRR HEARZREER M

NEl (BRFPBEKYAAR 1;&&%
jJDImFuu)E’ﬂOO%HX*’?é R EEE B
TWG Heritage#) 3F &Hﬂ?@éﬁnﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
1,191,000/ 7T ° 2 £ [ 7 58 FE 1258 AR 7 25 8
11,191,000 T R B R R A A BILHEDR
1 $1218,0007% JT °

RERETREBERME

(@) EEFHEXRSH
(i) @&2017&12%315&@}*'
JiE I 8 Bt 1 A 1510485000

5 70 AR 21 40
FiEEH -

(i) EZE2017F12831BILEE -
B & &5 “”Tﬁﬁﬂxaﬁﬂéuﬁz
A419,000/% T LA & #2158 iR
AINKERFPIEEHE -

(i) EZE2017F12831BILEE
7 HA % B A $£86,645,0007% 7T

A TFRERIEBRARNER
Ko B U B 4R 1 % A B B K
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. MERERERME (&)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(@) Major non-cash transactions (Continued) (a)

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2017, a
special dividend totalling HK$36,300,000 was
declared by the Company and distributed from
the contributed surplus, of which
HK$21,800,000 was set off against the amount
due from the ultimate holding company and the
remaining HK$14,500,000 was settled in cash.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities
The table below details the cash flows and non-cash
changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities. Except as disclosed below, there
were no non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities.

FEHFEAEERE (B)

(iv) B ZE2017F12A31H LFE -
RARERFRRKRS G H
36,300,000 7T + Wt A &
# 5 Kk » H $121,800,000/ T
B PR & R R A R ROIR K
$4 - T #2 14,500,000 7T Al
RS &1+t o

REBMETHNEBENEK

TRFHAEAKERABEE D
MBENRERENFRSE -
BRRITIXRBEEIN AEBXRER
EEOMAEREFRSEY -

2018 20184
Interest-
bearing bank Dividend
borrowings payables Total
FFEBITER EARE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER THER
At 31 December 2017  M2017512A318 &
and at 1 January 2018 #2018%F1 818 191,559 - 191,559
Financing cash flows BERERE (35,321) (18,093) (53,414)
Non-cash changes HHEE
Dividends declared TR A - 18,093 18,093
Effect of changes in IEEREB T E
foreign exchange rates (18) - (18)
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 156,220 - 156,220
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

30. mERERERNT (&)

(b) REMEETBHNEEHHIKRE)

2017 20174
Interest-
bearing bank Dividend
borrowings payables Total
AT RESRITER JE T AR B aat
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TET FAET FET
At 1 January 2017 M20176E1A1H 173,865 = 173,865
Financing cash flows BERERE 17,130 (14,500) 2,630
Non-cash changes I 2 E
Dividends declared =R &5 = 122,945 122,945
Settlement of dividend i BB & LILI A A
payables through an RBLEBEMRE
amount due from the
ultimate holding
company — (108,445) (108,445)
Effect of changes in IEEXREFNTE
foreign exchange rates 564 — 564
At 31 December 2017 2017612 H31H 191,559 = 191,559
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. HAREE
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, the EA%Z12017¢&2018¢12H BRILEFE -
Group was not able to obtain the real estate ownership AEBERERSAAF H A H M EE

certificates for two warehouses located in the Mainland
China (note 13). As the Group completed the construction
of the relevant warehouses and commenced usage
without obtaining the necessary construction planning
permit and construction commencement permit prior
to the construction and did not complete the filing of
the necessary construction completion reports with the
relevant authorities, the Group may be requested by the
relevant authorities to demolish the construction and is
subject to a maximum penalty amounting to RMB1,321,000
(equivalent to HK$1,504,000) (31 December 2017:
RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to HK$1,519,000)). On 15
December 2017, the Group obtained a temporary
construction permit for a period of two years for one of
the warehouses. Having considered the recent approval of
the temporary construction permit of the warehouse and
the current application status of the temporary construction
permit of the remaining warehouse which is currently being
processed by the relevant authorities and the advice from
the Group’s legal counsel, the directors believe that it is
not probable that the relevant authorities will impose the
penalty. Accordingly, no provision for the relevant liability
has been made.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had a contingent
liability in respect of a corporate guarantee given to a
bank of HK$212,750,000 in connection with certain
banking facilities granted to the ultimate holding company
of the Company which has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements. The banking facilities
granted to the ultimate holding company were utilised to
the extent of HK$212,750,000. Such corporate guarantee
was fully released upon the Listing.

EW%W%%E(W;&BS) ETERER
HEAEEYHBFEAA  AEEREE
MEIRRSAENERIERAITIR
BETEE IR - I8 K 5E K W) 46 3
WRABERR % TRE - AUt AR RS
AREERAEBIFREZBEER WAl #
B e E AR 1,321,000c ) S X (FBE
1,504,000 7T (20174128318 : AR
#%1,321,0007T (48 & 71,519,000 7T) ) °
2017 12R158 - A& E R EP — @&
ERGSAHEMENBRRERTIE K
ERZRAESIMNBRRERIT A ZER
HERBTEERAMBBMNRR (B ATHHE
FAHBEEETR) RSB AEBERREED
BER%& EZMEEMEEEEREMNS R
etk ALTERABHEGETIRE
1# o

R2017F12A318 AEB 2 R B &
DEARRREBERAGMER ZET
$R 17 Bb 38 17 4R 17 1E 212,750,000/ 7T 1Y
NAEER ZERBLRREGE 0B ®
KPR -HEERAFERORITH
B B B) 212,750,000/ 7T © 2 A A &
RER EMEBERER -
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group leases certain of its warehouses, offices and
retail stores under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to four years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

. REHEZH
AEERBEEHESR WE%%
B -MAERTEE MEZHE %%
AAE—ENFRE-

MR2018F12A31H » AN & B & 7] 8 &
EHEETHARKERAENTAER
%I A 5 3 BB

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year — ¢ % 11,905 9,779
In the second to fifth years, FRAFE(BEEREME)

inclusive 9,415 7,719

21,320 17,498

33. COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 32 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

33. A iE

Bk £ 3P GES2FT 5 A B0 A8 & TH B AHE
Sh - REBERNHEHEKRE T E KN

=

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for in B 5] 4918 & # # :
respect of:
Property, plant and equipment N N 615 739
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BHRAIRS
(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and (@) BRUEFTBEmRKEM IO P
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial RG - RHEREHIN RFR - K
statements, the Group had the following SEE@E A NREEMEBHT
transactions based on terms mutually agreed terms B IRRETHR S

with related parties during the year:

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TER TAT
Purchase from Guangzhou (] & M AT 368 M 55 K R
Dandy Don’s Ice Cream BIR 2 AMEL &R E
Factory Co Ltd. (i) 99 920
Rental expenses paid to a MBAB AR NNEAERAX
related company (i) 1,860 1,860
Interest income earned from B & &R EMR A & B ELA
the ultimate holding FEHA
company (ii) - 419
Notes: B SE
() Mr. Wong Tat Tong, a director and the beneficial (i) AR EERERRETEEL
shareholder of the Company, is the controlling EAZEEB AR NERKE -
shareholder of these related companies.
(i)  The interest income earned from the ultimate holding iy BRKRERDRRIRAFNBE UK
company was charged at Hong Kong Inter-bank A HIERBEBRITREREINF
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.5% per annum. FI Z=1.5% U BY ©
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

of the Group

4. BB AEXRZ (&)

(b) XEEEXEEEASNHMN

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx F&T
Short term employee benefits %2 B {& 8 18 7 16,066 14,264
Equity-settled share option DRREZENERERS
expense 2,891 —
Pension scheme contributions & Kk & 5t 2/ { &
(defined contribution (R EMFKETED
schemes) 540 442
19,497 14,706

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s ERESENETETHEMNHF
remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the financial 15 RS 3RR M 8 B& o
statement.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 3. I H — BEHES

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEEHER SESRTANEKEEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period N

are as follows:

Financial assets

Loans and receivables

BEXRERRIE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 163,848 170,353
Financial assets included in FFAENFIE -ZE X
prepayments, deposits and H fth fE IR Y
other receivables CREE 4,752 5,576
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFECEEY 328,684 45613
497,284 221,542
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. €T HE — ®ERI& 5 (&)

36.

(Continued)

Financial liabilities o =R
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RBERITENESRER
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade and bills payables B RN RIEBERENEE 91,240 91,624
Financial liabilities included in T A FE AT 3R IE I A FE 3R 18
accruals and other payables NEeRaE 33,877 42,452
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & S8R 1T XK 156,220 191,559
281,337 325,635

FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities
included in accruals and other payables, interest-bearing
bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

in a current transaction between willing

36.

—F-N\FFH BRERERERQF

EMTANQAFERAFERR

EEEBENEE S RWE  GTARN
HE - B REMEUBGRENSREE -
BehReFEY BFENIANE
R\ - 5T A A A K H A B 5K
MEMBE FERTERNAFER
HEmEMLES TEHRZEFTAHR
REXBPEATELFEK -

TREENMBENAFEAEBRRS S
(REHFRAEERINEENXZHA
RXHMNZTEEBEAR - BAMGFAF
BOERBRRNOT
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36.

37.

194

FAIR VALUES AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits
have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using the
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

rates currently available for

The carrying value of the non-current portions of the
variable rate interest-bearing bank borrowings is assumed
to be their fair value based on frequent repricing.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial

instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.

The main
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

risks arising from the Group’s financial

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. Management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continueqd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

. BEREEEERBE(E)

Rl 2 L B (47)
TRIUPAEMAEL S BBHETEER

™ AN B RR A R A B A RS IR A
REESNHRE CBBETBRITERN

B/ %8B
FE) o

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

BEELEHA B Bt A1 3 R
(FRe) 48 D)

HK$’000
BT
2018 20184
HK$ BT 50 (593)
HK$ BT (50) 593
RMB AR 50 87
RMB AR (50) (87)
2017 20174
HK$ BT 50 (636)
HK$ 7S TT (50) 636
RMB AR 50 7
RMB AR (50) (7)
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37.

196

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by
operating units
functional currencies. The majority of the Group’s foreign
currency purchase transactions are denominated in US$.
On the other hand, the sales and disbursements are
mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB. As HK$ is pegged
to US$, the Company does not anticipate significant
movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rates and the
exposure on foreign currency risk is not material.

in currencies other than the unit’s

The Group’s risk management principles with regard to its
foreign currency denominated monetary assets, liabilities,
commitments, and cash flows is to match as far as
possible the values of such assets and cash flows against
similarly denominated liabilities and cash flows. Decisions
on either holding net short or long positions in foreign
currency denominated monetary assets or liabilities are
taken on case-by-case basis and by taking into
consideration the amount and duration of the expenses,
market volatility, economic trends and requirements of the
business.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT MERREEEERBE(Z)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SR B (E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TREINBERREMEEMEEH
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in FAEBRT - AN E AR A& 5
the Swiss Franc (“SFR”) and RMB exchange rates, with all fﬁﬁi/ﬁ BR([IREP D) RARKERN S E
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before ARE B RE -
tax.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rate before tax

ExtH B %t Al 28
(FRe) &/ OR)

HK$’'000
FAET

2018 20184
If HK$ weakens against SFR finl & 78 7T A Im B B2 (B 5% (133)
If HK$ strengthens against SFR MEBITHIRBAHE (5%) 133
If HK$ weakens against RMB WEBTLARKEAE 5% (5)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WEBTLAREHAE (5%) 5
2017 20174
If HK$ weakens against SFR ¥ % 78 7T K 3w BB By (B 5% (22)
If HK$ strengthens against SFR & BT in A E (5%) 22
If HK$ weakens against RMB MAEBTLAREEE 5% (135)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WEBTEARBKAEAE (5%) 135
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEFEEEERITBEEERTFNE=H
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers BEIRG  AEEBRERE - FIEHRIEE
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit EHETRINER HYEEXEER ’f?
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances ERRF o o REBIFEER BT
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s Eep o WEEHERNEERRRE

exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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37.

198

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MEEAKEEEERBEE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at B AR R R2018F12A31HE XK
31 December 2018 7
The table below shows the credit quality and the TRINTHEREASENGEERRNEE
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s HExhpEERRMAESNHENRRE -
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due FENUEBHNER RKE (BRIEE EM
information unless other information is available without BERMBEAFRBERANEN) UK
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification MR2018F12H31BEM E R D K - B 2 W
as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented are THRANSHEERBMASE -
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 A B H
FEFE 2HENGEERA
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-% -t ] F=R A% @
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERL TER TER TER TER
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE - - - 173,660 173,660
Financial assets included in SABMARE B
prepayments, deposits and R Efth e 51 0B
other receivables MeREE 4,752 - - - 4,752
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEEY 328,684 - - - 328,684
333,436 - - 173,660 507,096

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

37.

BHEBREEEERBE(E)

& A E K& A2018F12A31H £ R K

(Continued) DR (E)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and HRASEEHELRITBEEERINSE
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for =HETRS  FIUEFERR - EES
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by REBIERRE/HFH - BRI &

customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry segment. As at the end of the reporting period,

ERRERE - RNI|EHER AEEBEH —
EMEESEFRER 9 5 A16% (2017

the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as F 6% ) &384% (20174 : 29% ) » T4 fE Ut
16% (2017: 6%) and 34% (2017: 29%) of the Group’s AEBSANEBARAKNERE ABFIEA ©
total trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest

debtor and the five largest debtors, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s EHASEREEZEBRENEER
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are fBrE - ELEE RBATHBEER

disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate
funds to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms. In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group has been maintaining a cash pooling system where
excess liquid is centralised internally through inter-group
accounts. Depending on the specific requirements of each
funding agreement, funding for the Group’s operating
companies may be sourced directly from the Group’s
bankers or indirectly through the Company.

—F-N\FFH FERERS

ff S 184% B8 o

RBEE AR
AEBNEERERABARE S AW E
HEBRAERARBDESCER - REER
PEcRAR AEE-BHAEFRSMLR
o EREEARRIREEKRFPRAZ TS
PENBKHRDES BIRETHE
NEBEXME  AEENEERQRTA
BEEAAEENERRITHABEERBAR
REIRMBER -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MEEAKEEEERBEE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESLER(E)
The following tables show the maturity profile of the TR BERRAAEBSHMAE
Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting BIEE # R IR A R H BB IBR

period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments.

On demand/
within Less than Within
3 months 1 year 2 to 5 years Total
BER/
EA R DIME 2E55 R &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FTAT TAT
2018 20184
Trade and bills payables & 5 B E &
ENEE 91,240 - - 91,240
Financial liabilities ARG RERE
included in accruals fo e RIE R &
and other payables maE 33,877 - - 33,877
Interest-bearing bank FFERITER
borrowings 131,003 8,782 18,074 157,859
256,120 8,782 18,074 282,976
2017 20174
Trade and bills payables & 5 & F 708 & f&
D37 91,624 - - 91,624
Financial liabilities AR RIERHE
included in accruals fib FE (S RIE R €
and other payables BAE 42,452 = = 42 452
Interest-bearing bank FTERITER
borrowings 122,245 18,405 55,682 196,332
Guarantees given to a ~ BR FHREERA
bank in connection AMRBER—R
with facilities granted RITEL MER
to the ultimate holding
company 212,750 — — 212,750
469,071 18,405 55,682 543,158
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. IR EREEBEERBKE(EZ)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to the
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is required to comply with certain
externally imposed capital requirements as set out in
certain banking facility letters. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

in economic

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
the ratio of interest-bearing bank borrowings to total
shareholders’ equity. Total shareholders’ equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to owners of the
parent. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

EXER
AEBEREANBERZARREREARRE
BEFELSE YHFREEALEN
XREXBLEERSRREE-

AEEEBHEALE UREBEEMR
NGB REEEENRRFREHE
THRE RERFRIABREARALERE K~&EF
AHEeHEINTREORE MRE
REBEARNBITHRGD - ANEBEEST
A TIRITELE S kAT E Y& T 5N 3B i A0
BB A E - B B2018%F K2017F 128
SIHLEFEYEHEEEANERZE K
RRBBEEHEE o

AEBEFERERNABLL X (B RRITE
Y RESEENLR)EREN - I
REDABBREARES ARGERE
MEFEE AEENERERBELRA
BLEREFNREEKFE RBBEHART
BARBELERMT :

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FAET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings & SR 1T K 156,220 191,559
Total equity attributable to owners YNEIE PN R T

of the parent 536,508 214,169

Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 29.1% 89.4%
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. XA AW R R &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

R BV e HA R B B S RO R B B

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T THE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NG OR8 78,563 78,563
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and deposits BN RBERES 380 5,056
Due from subsidiaries JiE U B [ A A 436,217 147,374
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 600 1,141
Tax recoverable A Y [@ 73 3 - 625
Total current assets MEBEERLE 437,197 154,196
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Accruals &=t 308 1,529 11,536
Tax payable FEA B IR 18 —
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 1,547 11,536
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 435,650 142,660
Net assets BEFE 514,213 221,223
EQUITY xS
Share capital & Zx 76,207 61,775
Reserves (note) & (M) 438,006 159,448
Total equity RSB 514,213 221,223
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THE COMPANY (Continued)

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. XA AW B BRRFK (&)

Note: M= -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AArfEBEOBERT :
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
R 13 % B B MABH BERERE R 8 & A @
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET FTAET THET THEL THEL
Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 H &
peg s 159,878 - - 24,402 184,280
Reallocation of share premium B EENENDE 159,878 = = =
Total comprehensive income for ~ FEZ2ERA L%
the year - - - 98,113 98,113
Dividends & - (36,300) - (86,645) (122,945)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A318 K&
1 January 2018 2018%1A1A - 123,578 - 35,870 159,448
Total comprehensive income for ~ FE2E KA L5
the year - - - 37,990 37,990
Issue of shares under initial public 1% & & X A fi % & %47
offering R 267,165 - - - 267,165
Share issue expenses BHmETEY (17,001) - - - (17,001)
Dividends &8 - - - (18,093) (18,093)
Equity-settled share option NIRERE R B RE
arrangement - - 7,405 - 7,405
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T B IRIEE 1T
share options 4,147 - (3,055) - 1,092
Transfer of share option reserve R ERELEET
upon forfeit of share options ERERE - - (115) 115 -
At 31 December 2018 H2018%12A31H 254,311 123,578 4,235 55,882 438,006
—E-N\FFH FEREBERBRAT 203
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39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 39. #Ht/EMBERK
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised B3R R R2019F3 AR EE S g it &
for issue by the board of directors on 5 March 2019. N RE T o
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Four Year Financial Summary

PO BF 75 =

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial
as extracted from the published audited financial

years,
statements, is set out below.

A SUMMARY OF RESULTS

REBE

AEERBENEMBRFENREAREE
BERFEREABE(BEREC TNIREER
MR ST -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 2015%F
(HK$°000) (HK$’000) (HK$’000) (HK$’'000)
(F#&x) (F#&m) (F#&m) (F#&m)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELSEER
REVENUE A 1,071,232 954,610 849,720 838,152
Cost of Sales 44 € p AR (738,104)  (664,996)  (575,626)  (591,748)
Gross profit E A 333,128 289,614 274,094 246,404
Other income and gains, net H Ath g A R Wz
ek 2,969 3,998 17,061 17,277
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HBX (120,265) (112,245) (108,890) (97,480)
Administrative expenses 1THE X (100,149) (109,743) (86,774) (89,896)
Other expenses, net H b5 X F 5 (11,998) (3,325) (9,844) (12,000)
Finance cost Bl & pK A (6,005) (4,126) (4,0006) (4,875)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM EEREXEK
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B B B 0% A 97,680 64,173 81,641 59,430
Income tax expense BT 15 84 A 2 (20,200) (15,799) (17,401) (12,843)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BEREEKN
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRER 77,480 48,374 64,240 46,587
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREER
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BRI EK
FROM A DISCONTINUED FERBEAN
OPERATION (B #8) - — 1,463 (7,131)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R 77,480 48,374 65,703 39,456
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PO BB (&)

A SUMMARY OF RESULTS (Continued) EEBME(E)

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLFE

2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F#&x) (F&mT) (F&mT) (F&mT)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the parent ~EER A
Profit for the year from FEEET
continuing operations F N A 75,784 46,095 63,243 48,009
Profit/(loss) for the year from a BRI EER
discontinued operation AL (E548) - = 1,703 (6,762)
Profit for the year & 3% F 75,784 46,095 64,946 41,247
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR M =
Profit/(loss) for the year from SFEILEETS
continuing operations F RE
(E1#8) 1,696 2,279 997 (1,422)
Loss for the year from a EARIE R &2
discontinued operation BEANBE - — (240) (369)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF,
(B#E) 1,696 2,279 757 (1,791)
77,480 48,374 65,703 39,456
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Four Year Financial Summary (continued)

O BB (&)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
HA12H318
2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154
(HK$000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F#&Ex) (F&T) (F&T) (F&T)
Non-current assets IERBEE 142,127 147,473 151,451 181,111
Current assets mEEE 719,414 433,988 439,913 383,567
Current liabilities mEasE 284,226 291,960 245,784 235,877
Net current assets mBEEFE 435,188 142,028 194,129 147,690
Non-current liabilities IEmBEE 22,988 57,441 48,282 64,697
Net assets BEFE 554,327 232,060 297,298 264,104
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of AR A AEMN
the parent = N 536,508 214,169 279,253 247,366
Non-controlling interests FEFE R HE = 17,819 17,891 18,045 16,738
554,327 232,060 297,298 264,104
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PO BB (&)

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

BE

Bt &

As at and for the year ended 31 December
M2A31A REBE12A31BLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154
Profitability ratios BRgED L=
Return on equity T 2= [B] g 5 14.1% 21.5% 23.3% 16.7%
Return on assets® & fE 0] 3R (52 9.0% 8.3% 11.1% 7.0%
Liquidity ratios REBESLLE
Current ratio® 7t B b R (9 2.5 1.5 1.8 1.6
Quick ratio® R &t e (e 1.8 0.8 1.2 0.9
Capital adequacy ratios EAXFERELE
Gearing ratio® BEAREE) 29.1% 89.4% 62.3% 70.7%
Net debt to equity ratio® BEFHEERLEEE  (32.1)% 68.1% 45.0% 46.5%
Notes: B & -

(1

208

Return on equity represents profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent as of the end of the same year.

Return on assets represents profit for the year as a percentage
of total assets as of the end of the same period.

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities
as of the end of the year.

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by
current liabilities as of the end of the year.

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Total debt represents interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent at the end of the year. Net
debt represents interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and
cash equivalents.
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